MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION
PUBLIC MEETING #269

May 23, 2019
10:00 a.m.
MassMutual Center
1277 Main Street
Springfield, MA

* % Kk Kk ok

Massachusetts Gaming Commission
101 Federal Street, 12'™ Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massgaming._com




NOTICE OF MEETING and AGENDA
May 23, 2019

Pursuant to the Massachusetts Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §§ 18-25, notice is hereby given of a
meeting of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission. The meeting will take place:

Thursday, May 23, 2019
10:00 a.m.
MassMutual Center
1277 Main Street
Springfield, MA

PUBLIC MEETING - #269

1. Call to order

2. Administrative Update — Ed Bedrosian, Executive Director
a. General Update

3. Ombudsman — John Ziemba
a. Community Mitigation Fund Scholarship — VOTE
b. MGM Springfield Quarterly Report — 1st Quarter 2019

4. Investigations and Enforcement Bureau — Karen Wells, Director
a. MGM Springfield Compliance Update

b. MGM Springfield Service Employee Exemptions— B. Curtis, Licensing Manager - VOTE
c. MGM Springfield Alcohol Permit Amendments— B. Curtis, Licensing Manager — VOTE

5. Research and Responsible Gaming — Mark Vander Linden, Director
a. Springfield and Surrounding Communities Public Safety Report —4 Month Follow up —
Christopher Bruce, Consultant

6. Commissioners’ Updates

7. Other business — reserved for matters the Chair did not reasonably anticipate at the time of posting.

I certify that on this date, this Notice was posted as “Massachusetts Gaming Commission Meeting” at
www.massgaming.com and emailed to: regs(@sec.state.ma.us, melissa.andrade(@state.ma.us.

05.81.19 (”W//Ma/'&‘a.b

Date Cathy Judd(St{(n, Chair
Date Posted to Website: May 21, 2019 at 10:00 a.m.
* Kk Kk kK
Massachusetts Gaming Commission
101 Federal Street, 12'" Floor, Boston, Massachusctts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.thissgaming.com




TO: Chairwoman Judd-Stein, MGC Commissioners

FROM: Crystal Howard, Jill Lacey Griffin, John Ziemba, Mary Thurlow
CC: Ed Bedrosian, Catherine Blue

DATE: May 22,2019

RE: Holyoke Community College - 2018 Workforce Development Grant
Amendment Request for Massachusetts Casino Career Training Institute

Request Summary: Holyoke Community College for the Massachusetts Casino Career
Training Institute (“MCCTI”) requests a budget amendment which proposes to use $7,500,
which was originally approved by the Commission for scholarships, to instead be utilized
as payment for gaming school instructors and a recruitment coordinator. MCCTI indicates
that approval of this amendment request would provide a blackjack and carnival games
course, free of charge, to at least 5 students but for as many as they can recruit to take the
course. The combined course cost (and scholarship equivalent) per student would be
about $598 ($399 for blackjack plus $199 for carnival games.)

HCC and MCCTI believe that this amendment will provide the gaming school with the
ability to:

e Offer a course which will otherwise be canceled due to low enrollment;
e introduce low income, local residents to new career pathways; and provide access to
dealer jobs at MGM Springfield;

MCCTI Budget Amendment Request:
The gaming school requests to transition a total of $7,500 of the scholarship allocation at

MCCTI to cover the cost of two gaming instructors and a temporary recruitment
coordinator for a course that is currently low-enrolled and will otherwise be canceled.
$2,100 of the $7,500 total amendment request would cover the cost of student recruitment.

* %k k&

MHHH‘.[L'IILIHL'.“_H (_‘}‘.lTHiHH (_..\HHIHﬁHHi(HI
101 Federal Hrmrr, 12th I‘\Il'll'll', Hl'l.‘}f(flﬂ, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massg;

IIIIIII_'_"\.t (00) )]




The breakout of the request is as follows:

Blackjack Class Instructor $3,045
Carnival Games Instructor $2,100
Benefits (UI, Medicare, WC - 2.1%) $105
Cost of required CPR class $255
Subtotal: $5,400
Case Manager time at recruitment events, info session, working $2,100
with Community Partners, assisting students with enrollment
Total Requested: $7,500

MCCTI Request Justification:

e This amendment request allows the course to run with only 5 students, if necessary,
to ensure the course is not canceled.

e The current 5 students enrolled were referred from the NE Farm Workers and are
low income residents who would qualify for the scholarship. Each student is
currently unemployed, and could qualify for employment at MGM if they complete
the course.

e The estimated total cost of running a Blackjack and Carnival Games class is $15,230
which includes space, equipment, related expenses and overhead costs provided as
a match by MGM Springfield. MCCTI requests the amendment for the direct cost of
$7,500 to cover the cost of a class. There is no cost for printing class manuals as they
are posted online for student access. There is no profit built into this calculation.

Staff Analysis: MGC staff found that the proposed changes meet the general goals and
original purpose of the funding set aside in MCCTI’s budget for gaming school scholarships
via the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund. As each student in the course would be receiving
the education at no cost, the proposed amendment continues to ensure that low-income
residents have access to high-paying, in-demand casino occupations. In fact, since gaming
school students do not always receive scholarships in an amount that cover the full cost of
the course, these students are benefitting from having their course offering covered at
100%.

2|Page



- \) —
~
: G o S R gl
/4 . — ~
P =5 —=
=3 e
A . &
 }

Q1 2019 Report W\ Bet ot
Massachusetts Gaming Commission { WA=
May 23, 2019 P

SPRINGFIELD




REVENUE, TAXES,
LOTTERY & COMPLIANCE

-)'\“ ~ .3
' T
[ T
>, ix h 1.4 ' - -
g rest -
— -
LR
b .




Q1 2019 Gaming Revenue & Taxes

Month Gaming Revenue W EVE
January $19,698,053 $4,924,513
February $21,500,878 $5,375,219

March $25,684,173 $6,421,043

TOTAL $66,883,106 $16,720,776

; MGM

SPRINGFIELD



Lottery

Month Lottery Sales at MGM Springfield

January $101,482
February $108,248
March $149,175

—-.m

Game # 0279170




Compliance

T g i

Minorsinterceptedin
Gaming Area and
prevented from Gaming
(% of visitation)

Minors intercepted Minorsintercepted

gaming consuming alcohol
(% of visitation) (% of visitation)

January 89 (.022) 18(.004) 0(0)

February 102(.045) 20(.005) 1(.000)

March 133(.030) 15(.003) 1(.000)




Security Plan Update

e Additional under-21signs

Eliminated crossing routes on the floor

Physical presence to check for minors at peak times
* Permanent rover posts for security officers

Hand stamp program for frequently ID’d patrons
Education Campaign for Community

Employees attended underage training class

Property curfew from midnight to 8 a.m. (unless hotel
guest)

* Locking all but two entrancesin the evening



Property Entrances

12:00 a.m. — 8:00 a.m.

8:00 a.m. —12:00 a.m.

- % "' 1 o8
"1 ITTTITTTIT
|- |
il

= M 5

= ‘ilw[‘MhﬂA = T Igﬁ‘:*:

il SR ki 4
J;rmﬂJHHJrH')'W HHHHHH A

o o 0 i H
=]

= i e \
& T f; —
[

T L - 4
preER Y A_J:\ o ’JL

P e =t = BN
,

MGM

SPRINGFIELD



Measures to Prevent Minor Access to Gaming & Alcohol

 All forward-facing employees/beverage servers
receiving refresher education

* Any beverage server with a violation subject to
progressive discipline and must retake the TIPS class

* Planned modifications to our discipline process with
respect to procedural violations involving minors

Special recognition for
employees who excel at finding
and removing minors.



SPEND UPDATE

SPRINGFIELD

e i z
a e < O o
; sasSs R O

S ,/z}'Z’.%’fél I’l’




Q1 2019 Operating Spend

16.00%
14.00%
12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%
2.00%
0.00%

Diversity Spend

Operating Spend
Q/Q Comparison
15.00%

10.00%

3.01%. Sa%I

mQ42018 mQ12019 mGoal

9.06%

?.35%I

$10.3M identified as Biddable Spend
$1.7M in payments to Diversity Suppliers (16.2%)

Notes:

- Total Biddable Spend for @1 2019 was 510.30M
- Diversity categonies defined as;
10 WEE — Women-Owned Business Enfarprize
MEE — Minority-Owned Business Enferprize
VEE — Vefersn-Owned Buziness Enfarprize

4.29%
3.49%

VBE

2.00%

MGM

SPRINGFIELD



Q1 2019 Operating Spend

Operating Spend
Q/Q Comparison
45.00%
40.00% Non Local , 41.8%|
o | 35.00% | Non Local , 41.2% |
5 30.00% S, 19.9%
o 2500% \
W 5 19 4%
— | 20.00% | \_sc 8.5% |
o . :
o oo LSC. 110%/ (Wi, 2.9%
= 10.00% \ ———
5.00% _WM , 2.0%
0.00% |
C Non Local WM
W Q42018 mQ12019
$11.5M in payments to Mass. Suppliers (58.8%)
$5.9M in payments to Western Mass. Suppliers (29.9%)
Notesz:
- Total Spend for @4 201 Bwsz 1560
- Spend zegmentz defined s2;
Commeonweslth [C)
MNon-Locsl!
1 Springfied (S)

Sumounding Communities (SC)
Wesztem Mazzschuestitz W)

MGM

SPRINGFIELD



Vendor Outreach

Date Event Location
1/11/2019 MGC VATF Metting Springfield, MA
1/30/2019 GNEMSDC Matchmaking Event Newington, CT
2/28/2019 AM Lithology Site Tour (VBE) Chicopee, MA
3/14/2019 Quaboag Hills Chamber Meeting Palmer, MA

_ @

‘. Greater New England
Minority Supplier
Development Council

Quaboag Hills

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
ssssssssssssssssssssssssssss

12




- F_. Wh N
= M .u.l
118
e
= i}
i b
W._ m \
) «e.-\ﬂw\_\.
i
A
-

EMPLOYMENT

4
X

SPRINGFIELD




Progress on Hiring Goals

Springfield Residents Women Minorities Veterans
35% 50% 50% 2%

6.1%

*Represents 2,303 active employees as of 03/31/2019 (Does not include Campus Tenants, Vendors)

1 MGM

SPRINGFIELD



Employment Numbers

Employees Full-Time Part-Time
Totals 2,303* 1,767 536
% of Totals 100% 76.7% 23.3%
2018-2019 Goals 042018 | Q42018 | 012019 |0Q12019 |Q22019 |0Q22019 |Q32019 |03 2019
% # % # % # % #

MINORITY 50% 56.3% 1,419 54.6% 1,258

VETERAN 2% 6.0% 151 6.1% 141

WOMEN 50% 45.3% 1,143 44.3% 1,021

SPRINGFIELD 35% 38.4% 969 39.3% 906

WESTERN MA REGION 73.5% 1,854 73.3% 1,687
MA RESIDENTS 73.6% 1,906 75.3% 1,734

TOTAL # OF MGM
EMPLOYEES

TOTAL # OF EMPLOYEES
OF VENDORS

TOTAL # OF EMPLOYEES
@GAMING
ESTABLISHMENT




2019 Q1 Recruitment Efforts

+ Keeping Western Mass Working Job Expo
+ Company wvisit with MA Rapid Response team

. Westdern MA Employment Collaborative — Outstanding Employer
awar

 UMass Amherst HTM Career Fair

« Grow the SHOW - internal workshop
 Westfield State University Job Fair

« SNHU Property Tour and Executive Panel

* College Career Centers of Western MA Job Fair

Western Mass Employment Collaborative

BISENBERG

SCHOOL OF MANAGEMENT

M Internal Career Workshop
CROW THE SHOW
MASSHIRE & What's your next stage?

SPRINGFIELD CAREER CENTER




e NN AN NN

vavey

—
—_—
m———

MARKETING & ol ===
ENTERTAINMENT

1

oy
| Sonradid
AR ¥ A

SPRINGFIELD




Marketing Calendar Highlights

ROAR
January February March
— AR " TIER CREDT
| i i
§5.2.0/0/008 3 / - s
SLOT
TOURNAMENT
o 2| W Sorguctfy momeo

MYSTERY
POINT

‘0 HIIlIIPlIEI!

s N MARCH
Weseasiante

C L 1P ton DRAWINGS

s, st 4 o FRIDAY, MARCH 15
| DRAWINGS e

| oo s $10,000

of 10-25% off at the South End e,

Market. Plus. have a chance to 40010400 pm.

win up to $500 in FREEPLAY!® e o e
Visit the M life® Rewards Sogedes:
desk for more details.

1 MGM

SPRINGFIELD



On-Property Activations

Chinese
t New Year

Ice Rink
# Programming

S TR, , | :

NI oo AR |
| = = & OREGAL (N
E——— g%/ T Wi
ICE RINK
. armen mata 4

e e

Private Sinbad
Concert

19



Regional Activations

= e -
B FTBERKSHIRE

4 e
.,




2 & THIS IS WHERE

SPRINGFIELD

THE EXCLUSIVE RESORT CASINO OF THE w I N N E RS I LA '
BOSTON RED SOX

- i
{‘]MGM RESORTs () - F=

INTERNATIONAL

2 G i (AR
o3 Bane
A0
Eaile Bail:




Q1 Entertainment Recap

OMEDY CLU
| MGM SPRINGFIELD |

SPRINGFIELD




____Date | _____Event | \Venue

5/23/2019 ROAR! - Drew Lynch Armory
5/24/2019 Food Truck Fridays Armory Square
5/24/2019 ROAR! - Drew Lynch Armory
5/24/2019 MGM Live: Trailer Trash (Open to Public) Plaza
5/25/2019 ROAR! - Drew Lynch Armory
5/25/2019 Memorial Day Cookout Armory Square
5/26/2019 Memorial Day Corn Hole Tournament Plaza
5/30/2019 MGM Live: FAT (Open to Public) Plaza
5/30/2019 ROAR! - Ben Bailey Armory
5/31/2019 Food Truck Fridays Armory Square

5/31/2019 MGM Live: Kung Fu (Open to Public) Plaza



__ Date | _Event | location _

6/1/2019
6/1/2019

6/1/2019

6/6/2019

6/6/2019
6/7/2019
6/7/2019
6/7/2019
6/8/2019
6/8/2019
6/12/2019

ROAR! - Stone Cold and the Jackal
ROAR! - Ben Bailey

MGM Live: Collective Soul / Gin Blossoms

MGM Live: Soul Sound Review (Open to
Public)

ROAR! - Carly Aquilino

Food Truck Fridays

MGM Live: Gary Hoey (Open to Public)
ROAR!- Carly Aquilino

ROAR! - Carly Aquilino

MGM Live: Hanson

Springfield Museums Drawing Class

Armory
Armory

Plaza

Plaza

Armory
Armory Square
Plaza

Armory
Armory

Plaza

Plaza



____bate | _____Event | location

6/14/2019 Food Truck Fridays Armory Square
6/14/2019 ROAR! - Rich Vos Armory
6/14/2019 MGM Live: Usually Normal (Open to Public) Plaza
6/15/2019 Memorial Day Cookout Armory Square
6/15/2019 ROAR! - Rich Vos Armory
6/19/2019 Whats on TAP Wednesday (BID) Plaza
6/20/2019 MGM I_.ive: Livio Gravini & The Free Spirit Society (Open Plaza
to public)

6/21/2019 Food Truck Fridays Armory Square
6/21/2019 MGM Live: Matt & Kim Plaza
6/22/2019 Solomon Fitness Boot Camp Plaza
6/23/2019 Air Supply Symphony Hall
6/27/2019 MGM Live: Blue Eyed Blackbird (Open to Public) Plaza
6/28/2019 Food Truck Fridays Armory Square
6/28/2019 MGM Live: Nick Fradiani (Open to Public) Plaza
6/29/2019 MGM Live: Village People Plaza

6/29/2019 Terry Fator Symphony Hall



___Date | Eent | location

7/5/2019
7/5/2019
7/6/2019

7/11/2019

7/12/2019
7/12/2019

7/18/2019

7/19/2019
7/19/2019
7/20/2019

7/25/2019
7/26/2019
7/26/2019
7/27/2019

MGM Live: Fab Four

Food Truck Fridays

MGM Live: 80sHD (Open to public)

MGM Live: The Alchemystics / Dorren Pierre (Open
to Public)

Food Truck Fridays

MGM Live: Matt Maratea (Open to Public)

MGM Live: Michelle Brooks Thompson (Open to
Public)

MGM Live: Joon (Open to Public)

Food Truck Fridays

MGM Live: MisterWives

MGM Live: Jason Ingriselli (Open to Public)

Food Truck Fridays

MGM Live: Consider the Source (Open to Public)
MGM Live: Warrant & Firehouse

Plaza
Armory Square
Plaza

Plaza

Armory Square

Plaza

Plaza

Plaza
Armory Square
Plaza

Plaza
Armory Square
Plaza

Plaza



ECONOMIC IMPACT &
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

L 3T
MGM

SPRINGFIELD

eswmves e/

G 5 e




Future Development Update

* Residential Development Update
* Dave’s Furniture lot Development
«  Armory Plans (i

*  MGM Springfield F&B Coming Soon \\, ,

Wahlburgers
(ut Femily, Oar Sty

Dor RBurges

28



Solar Panel Canopy

Solar Panels will provide 6% to 9% of the property's use.

Timeline

Permit Submission 5/27
Building Permit 6/21
Mobilization 6/24
LI
(' Start Install 6/25
"W
W
G Install Complete 9/30
Wi Commissioning 10/1
Completion 10/31

29



Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED™)

MGM Springfield has received the world’s first US Green Building Council’s Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED™) New Construction Platinum level certification for a gaming resort.

The sustainable design and development elements that helped MGMS
receive the LEED New Construction Platinum certification include:

* The property’s new solar array, which will supply renewable electricity
to the facility.

* Arainwater harvesting system and underground cistern to capture,
store and treat rainwater onsite, allowing 100% of water for
landscaping to come from this source.

* Diverted more than 95% of construction and demolition waste by
weight, from landfills during construction.

. MGM

SPRINGFIELD




THANK YOU

P

_ MGM

SPRINGFIELD




Investigations and
Enforcement Bureau

MEMORANDUM

TO: Chair Cathy Judd-Stein
Commissioner Gayle Cameron
Commissioner Bruce Stebbins
Commissioner Eileen O'Brien
Commissioner Enrique Zuniga

FROM: Karen Wells, Director — IEB
Loretta Lillios, Chief Enforcement Counsel — IEB

RE: Assessment of a Civil Administrative Penalty upon MGM Springfield in the Amount
of $100,000 for Noncompliance with Provisions Regarding Underage Persons

DATE: May 17, 2019

On May 17, 2019, the Investigations and Enforcement Bureau ("IEB") of the
Massachusetts Gaming Commission assessed MGM Springfield ("MGMS") with a civil
administrative penalty in the amount of $100,000 for violations related to noncompliance with
provisions regarding minors and underage persons.

During the first two months that MGMS was open, the IEB emphasized to MGMS that it
was required to prevent persons under the age of 21 from accessing the gaming area® and prevent
the service of alcohol to underage persons upon the premises of the gaming establishment.> The
IEB formally notified MGMS on October 24, 2018 that 22 documented incidents involving
underage persons in the gaming area had occurred in the first two month period following the
casino's opening on August 24, 2018.3

Subsequently, during the time period between November 22, 2018 and December 2,
2018, the following eight incidents involving 11 underage persons occurred:

! The "gaming area" is defined in the gaming law as "the portion of the premises of a gaming establishment in which

or on which gaming is conducted." See G.L. c. 23K, § 2.

2 " - - T - " - - - - - -
The "gaming establishment" is defined as "the premises approved under a gaming license which includes a gaming

area and any other nongaming structure related to the gaming area and may include, but shall not be limited to,

hotels, restaurants or other amenities." Id.

® The IEB had additional discussions with MGMS staff about compliance with provisions relating to underage

persons and minors as well.

L B 0 B 1
Massachusetts Gaming Commission
101 Federal Street, 120 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979.8400 | FAX 617.737.8066 | www.massgaming.com




e November 22, 2018 — A minor accompanied by two adults pushed a button on an
electronic gaming device ("EGD"). MGMS personnel promptly informed them that the
minor was not permitted in the gaming area. The minor was observed minutes later to be
next to a slot machine again before leaving the gaming area with one of the adults via the
hotel elevator.

e November 23, 2018 - Two 20 year old males wagered on a poker game in the poker room
for approximately 4 hours.

e November 23, 2018 — An 18 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately 45
minutes and gamed on an EGD.

e November 23, 2018 — A 20 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately 25
minutes and gamed on an EGD.

e November 24, 2018 — An underage female was in the gaming area for approximately two
hours and gamed on an EGD.

e November 24, 2018 — A 20 year old male was at the gaming establishment for
approximately one hour and 30 minutes, during which time he consumed alcoholic
beverages and also was in the gaming area.

e November 24, 2018 - Three underage males (one age 19 and two age 20) were in the
gaming area for approximately one hour, and all gamed at EGDs.

e December 2, 2018 — An underage male was in the gaming area for approximately 45
minutes and gamed at EGDs.

After December 2, 2018, the IEB continued to monitor MGMS's compliance related to
underage persons and minors. On December 6, 2018, the MGC sent a letter to MGMS directing
the closure of the crosswalk across the gaming area to underage persons.® The closure of the
crosswalk to underage persons was effective as of December 14, 2018, after which time
underage persons would be permitted to walk only around the outside perimeter of the gaming
area. Nonetheless, between December 14, 2018, and April 23, 2019, the following 14 incidents
involving 19 underage persons occurred.

e December 14, 2018 — A 19 year old male was present in the gaming area for
approximately five minutes and gamed on an EGD.

* MGMS had designed the crosswalk to allow all guests, including underage persons, to cross the gaming area,
rather than requiring underage persons to walk around the outside perimeter of the gaming area.

2



December 15, 2018 — A 17 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately
55 minutes and wagered at roulette.

December 24, 2018 — A 19 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately
30 minutes and gamed at multiple EGDs.

December 25, 2018 — An 18 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately
30 minutes and gamed at an EGD.

December 25, 2018 — Two underage males (age 16 and age 17) were in the gaming
area for approximately eight minutes, and each gamed on an EGD.

December 26, 2018 — Three underage males (two ages 19 and one age 20) were
present in the gaming area for approximately 26 minutes, and each gamed at EGDs.

December 27, 2018 — A 19 year old male was on the gaming floor for approximately
one hour and 50 minutes and gamed on an EGD.

December 27, 2018 — An 18 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately
42 minutes and gamed at multiple EGDs.

December 29, 2018 — A 20 year old female was in the gaming area for approximately
one hour and 20 minutes and gamed on multiple EGDs.

December 30, 2018 — Two underage females were in the gaming area for
approximately 39 minutes, and each gamed on EGDs.

December 30, 2018 — Two underage persons were on the gaming floor for five
minutes, and one of them gamed at an EGD.

January 2, 2019 — A 16 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately 45
minutes and pressed buttons on an EGD several times (his companion inserted the
funds).

April 22, 2019 - An 18 year old female was in the poker room for approximately four
hours and six minutes and consumed alcohol there, but did not game.

April 23, 2019 — A 20 year old male was in the gaming area for approximately one
minute and placed a wager at a blackjack table.



The gaming law and regulations place a high priority on the protection of minors and
underage individuals. Despite multiple meetings and discussions about the issue between
MGMS personnel and IEB and Commission staff, as well as prior formal notification to MGMS
regarding repeated incidents involving underage persons, MGMS permitted 22 such incidents
involving 30 underage persons or minors to occur between November 22, 2018 and April 23,
2019. As noted above, the IEB has assessed a civil administrative penalty in the amount of
$100,000 for the above violations.

In addition to the civil administrative penalty, the IEB has required that MGMS identify
in writing all modifications to its Security Plan previously approved in August of 2018, and
submit to the IEB a plan for improved compliance which shall address, at a minimum, additional
training of security personnel and table games personnel with respect to underage persons and
minors. MGMS is required to provide these materials for review by the IEB no later than May
22, 20109.

MGMS has informed the IEB that it acknowledges the accuracy of the incidents itemized
above and agrees to the amount of this assessment. By its agreement, MGMS has waived its
right to an adjudicatory hearing before the Commission on this matter.



TO: Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair
Gayle Cameron, Commissioner
Eileen O’Brien, Commissioner
Bruce Stebbins, Commissioner
Enrique Zuniga, Commissioner

FROM: Bill Curtis, Licensing Manager

DATE: May 20th, 2019

RE: Gaming Service Employee (SER) Exemptions: MGM Springfield

SUMMARY

The following request for three (3) registration exemptions for MGM Springfield is being
presented to the Commission for consideration and approval. (“Exemption Identification
Forms” are included in the packet.) Commission staff worked with MGM Springfield in
developing this recommendation and is in agreement with the three positions contained in
this packet.

Overview

Exempt Service Employee Positions
(Recommended)

Total # SER Positions Total SER Headcount
3 40

Exempt Position List (Recommended)

- . . Property
JoblRuolis Position Department MGC Licensing Access
Number Category

Level
12550 Usher Entertainment | Exempt N1
Warehouse-
1
16073 Warehouse Runner Loading Dock Exempt N
11287FB Food & Beverage Hospitality | Food & Exempt N1
Internship Program Beverage

! Access level “N” is described as: “No access to secure casino back-of-house without security escort.”
MHHH'.I_L"]UH{][[H (_;".I_Hlill‘]_”' (.._..‘(HTIHI'IIHHi()H
101 Federal Street, 120 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617,979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massgaming.com




BACKGROUND

On November 2, 2017 Governor Baker signed a statutory amendment which granted the
Massachusetts Gaming Commission the authority to exempt certain “Gaming Service
Employee” level job positions from the mandatory registration process. At its January 18,
2018 meeting, the Massachusetts Gaming Commission discussed its policy perspective on
this exemption authority and provided staff with a framework and process for considering
any potential exemptions. Additionally, the Commission endorsed factors for consideration
when making exemption determinations. These included whether or not the position
involves:

- Work performed on the gaming floor

- Managerial responsibilities in any department

- Supervisory responsibilities in Human Resources, Sales and Marketing

- Responsibilities for alcohol sales, distribution, service, and/or storage

- Access to secure casino back-of-the house areas (including executive offices)
without security escort

- Responsibilities for accounting and/or finance relating to the gaming establishment

- “Write” access to gaming-related casino databases

- Responsibilities that potentially impact the integrity of gaming operations,
including access to confidential or sensitive information

[t is important to note that any exemption decision may be revisited by the Commission at
any time, and additional positions may be exempted in the future.

* & K Kk k

Massachusetts (_}mnin}_l" Commission
101 Federal Street, 12 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617.979,8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | ww W, MAsSsgaming.com




MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

 IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL POSITIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENT BY THE MGC

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission may exempt a job position from categonzation as a gaming service
employee. See G.L. c. 6, § 172(0); 205 CMR 134.03(4).

GaminG Licensee: _Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC (dba MGM Springfield)

JoB POSITON (AND UNIQUE JOB CODE): Usher - 12550

EFFeCcTIVE DATE OF JOB DESCRIPTION:

JoB DESCRIPTION
(The Licensee shall immediately notify the Bureau of changes to any job description for an exempted position,)

Position Summary: It is the primary duty of the Usher to assist in seating, wayfinding and ensuring the comfort of
guests attending shows and other event functions. All duties are to be performed in accordance with federal, state,
local laws, regulations, and ordinances, as well as department and Company policies, practices, and procedures,

. Greets all guests with eye contact, a smile and a friendly welcoming greeting

. Addresses guests' service needs in a professional, positive and timely manner.

® Scans guest's tickets and directs them to the correct seat and/or area of venue while being courteous and
professional.

. Directs patrons to restrooms, concession stands.

Guides patrons to exits, maintains order and provides instructions or assistance during emergencies.

Provides information upon guests' request for any additional services such as property restaurants, services,
shows and events

Sets up and removes ropes and stanchion for guests.

Places appropriate signage at the entrance to the Arena.

Reports areas in need of repair and maintenance.

Handles service requirements and guests relations prior to show.

Asslsts with all guest functions.

Coordinates with Manager to ensure proper seating and seating adjustments.

Monitors door and guest entry and exit.

Monitors venue throughout shows for guest behaviors including but not fimited to taking pictures, video
recording and any possible disruptions.

{Continue to Page 2}

m

identification of Potentia) Positions for Exemption . REV 1-22-18




GAMING LICENSEE CERTIFICATION

The Commission considers the following non-exhaustive list of factors when determining whether or not to
exempt a job position. Please indicate information about each factor for the position that has been
identified as potentially eligible for exemption.

JoB PoSITON (AND UNIQUE JOB CODE):

Usher - 12550

Responsibilities for alcohol sales,
distribution, service,_ and/or storage

" FACTOR % DESCRIPTION / EXPLANATION

- & S U N/A
Work performed on gaming floor

| Managerial responsibilities in any i

departrne_nt

Sﬁpervlsory responsibilities In Human - 2l
Resources or Sales and Marketing

N/A

Access to secure casino back-of-the
house aréas (including executive offices)
without security escort .

Access Level: N
No access to secure casino BOH without security escort

Responsibilities for-accounilng and/or
findnce relating to the.gaming
esta_bllshment

N/A

*Write” access to gaming-related casino
databases - ) : 7

N/A

Responisibilities that potentially impact
the integrity of gaming operations, . -
Including access to corfidential or -
_sensitive information

N/A

Other (please set forth other relevant
information for exemption. .
consideration) : :

‘| Role performs not duties on the gaming floor. Will work in

the plaza, armory, Symphony Hall, and banquet spaces
only.

{Continue to Page 3}

identification of Potential Positions for Exsmption ’

REV 1-22-18




Jos PosITON {AND UNIQUE JOB CODE): Usher - 12550

The undersigned states that the information herein is true and accurate.

W / Jason Randall. 4///5;//?

Sig)e't'ure - / ' / Printed Name Date’

Identification of Potential Positions for Exemption

REV 1-22-1¢




MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL POSITIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENT BY THE MGC

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission may exempt a job position from categorization as a gaming service
employee, See G.L. c. 6, § 172(o); 205 CMR 134.03{4).

GaminG Licensee:  Biue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC (dba MGM Springfield)

Jos Positon (aND uNIQUE JoB cope): _YVarehouse Runner - 16073

EFFECTIVE DATE OF JOB DESCRIPTION:

JoB DESCRIPTION
(The Licensee shall immediately notify the Bureau of changes to any job description for an exempted position.)

P UM ]
The Material Runner is primarily responsible for delivering product ordered from the warehouse to the outlets in a timely and
efficient manner. The Material Runners must work closely with and maintain consistent communication with the dock leadership to

ensure an efficient operation. :

POSITION RESPONSIBILITIES/DUTIES:

* Verify al! warehouse requisitions and warehouse receivers to pallet to ensure all product is delivered as requisitioned;

* Ability to operate warehouse equipment inclusive of pallet jacks, hand trucks, etc. as needed;
* Ensure all equipment is inspected prior to each shift and in proper working order and communicate any maintenance needs

immediately to Loading Dock management;
* Interact with fellow employees and guests in a manner consistent with MGM Resarts customer service standards;
* Report any product/property damage to Loading Dock management;
* Conduct oneself in a manner which supports company diversity and inclusion standards;
* Maintain a clean and safe work environment in the loading dock area and staging areas throughout the property;
* Other job related duties as requested;

{Continue to Page 2)

identification of Potential Positions for Exemption REV 1-22-18




GAMING LICENSEE CERTIFICATION

The Commission considers the following non-exhaustive list of factors when determining whether or not to
exempt a job position. Please indicate information about each factor for the position that has been
identified as potentially eligible for exemption.

Jos PosiToN (anp uniaue o cope):  Warehouse Runner - 16073

CFAGOR T e et LA © 7 DESCRIPTION / EXPLANATION
W o NA

e

Work performed on gaming floor:

Menageﬂal responsibilities in any s

department

Supervisory responsibilities In Human AL

Resources or Sales and Marketing

Transport of alcohol on pallets from dellvery trucks to

Responsibllities for alcohol sales, storage area.

distribution, service, and/or storage

Access to secure casino back-of-the Access Level: N
house areas (including executive offices) No access to secure casino BOH without security escort

without security escort

Responslbllltles for accounting andfor [ N/A
finance relating to the gaming
establishment

“Write” access to gaming-related casino NiA

_databases

Responsibilities that potentially Impact |y,
the integrity of gaming operations,
including access to confidential or

_sensitive lnfor'mation
Other (please set forth other relevant Position more specialized than Warehouse Attendant role,
Information for exemption which is exempt from licensing.
co.nsld_erat!onl e
{Continue to Page 3)

Identificaion of Potential Positions for Exemption REV 1-22-18




Jo Positon (anp uniquesoscope): _VVarehouse Runner - 16073

The undersigned states that the information herein is true and accurate.

/ Jason Randalll - t?//;// f

Signatyfe / ./ Printed Name

Identification of Potential Positions for Exemption

REV f1-22-18




MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION

IDENTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL POSITIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENT BY THE MGC

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission may exempt a job position from categorization as a gaming service
employee. See G.L.c. 6, § 172(0); 205 CMR 134.03(4).

Gaming Licensee:  Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC (dba MGM Springfield)

Jos PosiTon (ano unique jos cope):  Food & Beverage HIP Intern - 11287FB

EFFECTIVE DATE OF JOB DESCRIPTION: :
{The Licensee shall immediately m;ﬂfy the Bureau of changes to any job description for an exempted position.)

JoB DESCRIPTION

The Hospitality Internship Program (HIP) extends current college students the opportunity to launch a career with MGM Resorts
International. Hospitality Interns are exposed to vatious departments to gain a well-rounded awareness of MGM Resorts
International's operation. During the E0-week paid intemnship program Intems learn best practices and operational strategies from top
exccutives to line level experts building a solid career foundation. Hospitality Intems support MGM Resorts International's
Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives by giving back to the community through voluateer activities. HIP sets the stage for

post-graduation opportunities including MGM's Management Associate Program and full-time employment.

*  Receive personalized learning plans specifically aligned to their goals and development opportunities in their chosen area of
concentration. '

*  Network with Company leaders while attending Resort Knowledge Days, a learning series that provides insight into the
complex business strategies of our properties.

»__Gain exposure within one or two departments in order to gain a cross-functional understanding of the MGM Resorts business
strategy.

*__Participate in MGM Resorts' Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives by engaging in diversity training, philanthropic events,
ete. i

¢ Other job-related duties as requested.

(Continue to Page 2)

m
Identification of Potential Positions for Exemption : i REV 1-22-18




GAMING LICENSEE CERTIFICATION

The Commission considers the following non-exhaustive list of factors when determining whether or not to
exempt a job position. Please indicate information about each factor for the position that has been
identified as potentially eligible for exemption.

JoB POSITON (AND UNIQUE JOB CODE):

Food & Beverage HIP Intern - 11287FB

Supervisory responsibilities in Human
Resources or Sales and Marketing

~.FACTOR e DESCRIPTION / EXPLANATION
Work performed on gaming flcor
Managerial responsibilities in any N/A
department
N/A

Responsibllities for alcohol séles,
distribution, service, and/or storage

May work on projects related to inventory control, including
alcohol, but no physmal touching of alcohol.

Access to secure casino back-of-the

without security escort

house areas {including executive offices)

Access Level: N
No access to secure casino BOH without security escort

Responsibilities for accounting and/or
finance relating to the gaming
establishment

N/A

databases

“Write” access to gaming-related casino

N/A

Responsibilities that pofentlally impact
the integrity of gaming operations, . -
including access to confidential or

N/A

_sensitive information

Other {please set forth other relevant | Position is a 10-week internship to expose student to F&B
information for exemptlon operations. Will only shadow F&B leadership and work on
conslderatlon) : special projects related to the department operation.

{Continue to Page 3)

Idontification of Potential Positions for Exemption REV 1-22-18




Jo» POSITON {ANG UGUE JoB CODE): Food & Beverage HIP Intern - 11287FB

states that the information herein is true and accurate.

/ / Jason Randall L{/f//’ ?

/ Printed Name Date

m
Identificetion of Potential Positions for Exemption

REV 1-22-18




TO: Cathy Judd-Stein, Chair
Gayle Cameron, Commissioner
Eileen O’Brien, Commissioner
Bruce Stebbins, Commissioner
Enrique Zuniga, Commissioner

FROM: Bill Curtis, Licensing Manager
Bruce Band, Assistant IEB Director — Gaming Agents Division Chief

DATE: May 20th, 2019

RE: Amendment to Gaming Beverage License: MGM Springfield

SUMMARY

The attached amendment request to the Gaming Beverage License from Blue Tarp
reDevelopment, LLC dba MGM Springfield is being presented to the Commission for
consideration and vote. The amendment requests are as follows:

e Salon - was included in the initial gaming beverage license application, but a license
was not issued. The amendment requests to include beverage service at the Spa.

e Plaza Bar - this dispensing area was approved for the service of alcohol in the initial
gaming beverage license application of June 2018, but without a tenant a license was
not issued. A new concept has now been developed to be operated by MGM Springfield.

e Food Trucks on the Plaza - was approved in the initial gaming beverage license
application, but a license was not issued. The Food Trucks are owned and operated by
MGM Springfield.

e (asino Island Bar - additional bar to be operated on the casino floor.

BACKGROUND

At the Commission meeting held on June 21st, 2018 the Gaming Beverage License application
was presented to the Commission for consideration and vote. The Gaming Beverage License
was approved for 22 licenses outlets, but not all licenses were issued.

Although the amendment is substantially complete, the Division of Licensing and the IEB
Gaming Agents Division will work with MGM Springfield to assure that the individuals
dispensing alcohol are properly registered.

* Kk ok k%

Milhh‘.l(_huh{_'llh (_‘;‘.UT]i”H (.._?(HTI'”I"lﬁHi("]
101 Federal Street, 120 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02110 | TEL 617,979.8400 | FAX 617.725.0258 | www.massgaming.com




AMENDED

GAMING BEVERAGE LICENSE
APPLICATION FORM

(Amends Gaming Beverage License Application dated May 22, 2018)

REASON FOR FILING APPLICATION

NAME OF GAMING LICENSEE

Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC

ADDRESS OF GAMING ESTABLISHMENT

One MGM Way
Springfield, MA 01103

NAME OF CONTACT INDIVIDUAL FOR PURPOSES OF THE PROCESS

Seth N. Stratton, Vice President & Legal Counsel

CONTACT INDIVIDUAL TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL ADDRESS

Telephone: (413) 273-5333 / E-mail Address: sstratton@mgmspringfield.com

| FEE

amended
The fee for an‘gaming beverage license is $48;0800- $100.

1 LICENSED AREAS

A licensed area is a specific, limited and defined space within a gaming establishment wherein the sale, distribution, or storage of
alcoholic beverages to be drunk on the premises is permitted pursuant to a gaming beverage license. A licensed area application on
page 2 must be submitted for each area of the gaming establishment that the gaming licensee desires to have designated as a licensed
area.

A floor plan of the gaming establishment indicating the location of each licensed area identified below, a\nd a diagram of each licensed
area, must accompany the submission of this application. If alcoholic beverages will be stored outside of a licensed area, storage
areas must be identified on the floor plan.

PROOF OF INSURANCE

Please attach proof of insurance to this application demonstrating liquor liability insurance for bodily Injury or death for a minimum
amount of $250,000 on account of injury to or death of 1 person, and $500,000 on account of any 1 accident resulting in injury to or
death of more than 1 person. The policy shall have no annual aggregate limit.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

The Massachusetts Public Records Law (Law), http.//www.sec.state.ma.us/pre/preidx.htm found in Chapter 66, Section 10 of the
Massachusetts General Laws, applies to records made or received by a Massachusetts governmental entity. Unless the requested
records fall under an exemption to the Law, the responsive documents must be made available to the requester. A list of exemptions
may be found in Chapter 4, Section 7(26) of the Massachusetts General Laws.

Form No.14: GAMING BEVERAGE APP — REV. 4/18 Page 1




LICENSED AREA APPLICATION
Please use a separate LICENSED AREA APPLICATION form for each licensed area and attach
each sheet, along with a floor plan and licensed area diagrams to this application.

NAME OF LICENSED AREA (e.g. — function hall, XYZ Restaurant, gaming area, etc.)

See attached Appendix for Licensed Areas identified as Numbers 9, 16 and 18 (Amended Licensed Areas) and Number 18a (Additional
Licensed Area) on the Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF LICENSED AREA

DESCRIPTION OF THE LICENSED AREA INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: BUSINESS CONCEPT, DESCRIPTION OF AREA
INCLUDING WHETHER THE AREA IS CLOSED OR OPEN SPACE, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE
DISPENSING AREAS, AND PLACEMENT OF EXITS.

(NOTE: A FLOOR PLAN OF THE LICENSED AREA DEPICTING THESE INDIVIDUAL ELEMENTS SHALL BE ATTACHED).

NUMBER AND/OR COLOR OF AREA ON FLOOR PLAN: | See attached Appendix

See attached Appendix for Licensed Areas identified as Numbers 9, 16 and 18 (Amended Licensed Areas) and Number 18a (Additional
Licensed Area) on the Table of Contents and as depicted on the Ground Floor (1 of 2) or Second Floor area floor plans.

Each Licensed Area is further described on its corresponding individual diagram included in the Appendix.

HoOURS OF OPERATION CAPACITY OF LICENSE AREA

See attached Appendix See attached Appendix

WILL YOU PROVIDE BOTTLE SERVICE? YES No D IF YES, PLEASE ELABORATE

In certain Licensed Areas only.

See attached Appendix for details.

Form No.14: GAMING BEVERAGE APP - REV. 4/18 Page 2




ALCOHOL STORAGE
DESCRIBE THE MANNER IN WHICH ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES WILL BE STORED AND SECURED WHEN LICENSED AREA IS

NOT IN USE. (IF STORAGE AREA IS OUTSIDE OLF LICENSED AREA, THIS STORAGE AREA SHALL BE DEPICTED ON THE
FLOOR PLAN).

See attached Appendix

[ NAME AND EMPLOYEE LICENSE/REGISTRATION NUMBER OF MANAGER OF LICENSED AREA

Anthony Caratozzolo, Vice President, Hospitality / MGC License No. NGKS00080

JOINTLY RESPONSIBLE PERSON

IDENTIFY THE JOINTLY RESPONSIBLE PERSON (IF ANY) FOR THE LICENSED AREA BY NAME, CONTACT INFORMATION,
VENDOR LICENSE OR REGISTRATION NUMBER, AND ATTACH EVIDENCE THAT THE LICENSEE MAINTAINS AUTHORITY
OVER THE JOINTLY RESPONSIBLE PERSON.

None

ATTESTATION

I =R NStration , hereby affirm under the pains and penalties of

perjury that the information contained in this application, including all attachments, is true and accurate to the best of my

knowledge an derstanding.
ﬁ/{/ st
, [ A AN

Signature

Seth N. Stratton
Print Name

Vice President & Legal Counsel
Title

5/17/ 19
Date

Form No.14: GAMING BEVERAGE APP — REV. 4/18 Page 3




Amendment to Gaming

Beverage License

P L

-
-

Application — May 17, 2019




Table of Contents

Licensed Areas

Ground Floor Licensed Areas

1. Cal Mare

2. The Chandler Steakhouse

3. Lobby Bar

4. Casino Walk Up Bar

5. The Knox Bar

6. Commonwealth

7. The South End Market

8. Casino Beverage

9. Salon Amend to: Salon and Spa

10. TAP Sports Bar

11. Outdoor Screen Viewing Area

12. Armory

13. Armory Marketplace

14. Top Golf

15. Indian Motor Cycle

16. TBD Retail/F&B Space Amend to: Plaza Bar
17. Kringle Candle

18. Food Trucks Amend to: Guac This Way and Man! Buns

18a. Casino Island Bar

Second Floor Licensed Areas
19. Banquet Space

20. Pool

21. In-Room Dining

22. Movie Theater

On-site Alcohol Storage Areas

23. Secure Liquor Pump Room

24. Secure Beer Pump Room

25. Secure Beer Cooler

26. Secure Banquet Liquor and Beer Storage
Bottle Service

27. Liquor Bottle Service

Limitations on Consumption within Gaming Establishment

28. Garage/Parking Lots
29. Outdoor Plaza

Proposed Conditions

30. Conditions for Approval



Ground Floor
1 of 2

1
|

|
D STREET

|
|

|

R

HOWA




Ground Floor_‘ijii

2 Of 2 /7 N i ! %1)58,@

e
S
Ll

; l

w.__!_
I
[
1

PR N |

\
L

et
=}
D

| | i
VL T 5 by i =l S X

o |
|
o

iy

o =

B
-

i e <d<\—ﬁH L
[

‘:s‘zvﬁmi' e, I N N e — e L ‘i;ﬁl_‘,‘__ 3 :

£ | i N

i ] : n unrun v:'rm16:!1u.u hgusi KETAZ W um.]r. RETAL su.;v
1 - |




Second Floor

A

T

5 STATE

ARMORY MARKETPLACE TRUSSES
TREET

ESCALATORS DOWN
TO CASINO




- S R A & e e

Salon 15t floor

(9) Salon ‘and Spa (Expansmnof I|‘censed area)

Name: The Salon and Spa

Business Concept: Hair, nails, makeup shop, spa services
Description: Indoor hair salon and spa

Normal Hours of Operation: 11am -9pm

Hours of Permitted Alcohol Service: 8am — 2am
Capacity: Spa Approx. 25. Salon Approx. 50

Alcohol Distribution Area: Hand served by trained staff.

Bottle Service: Yes, pursuant to approved bottle service
program (see Section 27)

Storage and Security (shown in blue): All liquor and wine
will be locked. All areas under 24 hour surveillance.

Manager of Licensed Area: Anthony Caratozzolo (MGC Lic.
NGKS00080)




(16) Plaza Bar

T ————
e e e O S e

EXIT
it hRe
S S S ——————— — * Name: Plaza Bar
- a * Business Concept: Cash bar for guests who prefer a
| I3 | premium beverage.

* Description: Cocktail bar

. BAR o * Normal Hours of Operation: 10am-12am

* Hours of Permitted Alcohol Service: 8:00 a.m. to 2:00
[ oS Y ey ; a.m.

* Capacity: Approx. 60

BOH | STOR,

* Alcohol Dispensing Area: Alcohol will be served by
bartenders at bar.

I — . - * Bottle Service: No

EHSaloke I T‘ o 1[ + Storage and Security ﬂshown in blue): All liquor, beer and
—! I wine will locked and all taps for beer and liquor will be
—] N . E shut after closing. All areas will be under 24 hour

surveillance.

| | . Mana%er of Licensed Area: Anthony Caratozzolo (MGC
Lic. N GKS00080)




R N ot e ey S S o ot s

Name: Guac This Way and Man! Buns

Business Concept: Food Trucks serving street
food, beer and wine

Description: Trucks parked in plaza

Capacity: N/A

Normal Hours of Operation: 10am -9pm

Hours of Permitted Alcohol Service: 8am — 2am

Alcohol Distribution Area: From food truck by
fountain worker

Bottle Service: No

Storage and Security: Alcohol stored in locked
food truck. Plaza under 24 hour surveillance.

Manager of Licensed Area: Anthony Caratozzolo
MGC Lic. (N GKS00080).



(18a) Casino Island Bar

a

[ o o o o

i

=3
nks

=i

I OO0OO0O0Oo0Of.

Name: Casino Island Bar

Business Concept: Cash bar for guests who prefer a
premium beverage.

Description: Cocktail bar
Normal Hours of Operation: 8:00am-2:00am

Hours of Permitted Alcohol Service: 8:00 a.m. to 2:00
a.m.

Capacity: Approx. 30

Alcohol Dispensing Area: Alcohol will be served by
bartenders at bar.

Bottle Service: No

Storage and Security SShown in blue): All liquor, beer and
wine will locked and all taps for beer and liquor will be
shut after closing. All areas will be under 24 hour
surveillance.

Manager of Licensed Area: Anthony Caratozzolo (MGC
Lic. N GKS00080)




Assessing the Impact of
Gambling on Public
Safety in Massachusetts

ANALYSIS OF MGM SPRINGFIELD’S
FIRST 4 MONTHS

Christopher W. Bruce

Crime analysis consultant




Summary

MGM Springfield opened in August 2018

This report covers September through December. It is a somewhat brief
scan, and some issues will be analyzed more fully in future reports.

From September-December, MGM was the top individual location for
crimes and calls for service in the 11-community region.

Changes to overall numbers (excluding casino itself) were mild.
Several property crime patterns may be related to the casino.

Increase in traffic-related incidents, including collisions, to south and west
on local roads.

Crashes showed normal volumes on state roads.

Crime in Metro Center generally did not increase with additional population



11 participating communities
+ State Police
Looking to get Amtrak Police involved

Population 410,424 (2016)
333.6 square miles
1,082 municipal police officers




30000

25000

20000

15000

10000

5000

-

2010

Springfield Area Trends

2010-2018

2011 2012

e \/i0lent Crime

2013 2014

e Property Crime

2015 2016 2017

== == Traffic Collisions

2018



3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

500

lan

Feb

Crimes by Month in Springfield-Area Communities

Apr

May

o 7018

MGM opens

‘h---‘

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct

== == Average of Previous 5 Years

-

-

- - -

MNowv

Dec



Methodology

Data collected from records systems of Springfield, Agawam, Chicopee,
East Longmeadow, Hampden, Holyoke, Longmeadow, Northampton,
West Springfield, and Wilbraham

Merged and translated into common database.

Period of September-December compared against past periods since
2010 (sometimes 2013). Unusual changes noted.

Different statistical methods used depending on whether crime already
showed a trend.

Any category significantly higher than normal fully analyzed with
collected data, plus some questions back to participating agencies



180

170

160

150

140

130

120

110

100

Forecasting a Crime with No Trend

e L L E LY

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

® Crime

Average == e e \Nindow == e e Window



180

170

160

150

140

130

120

110

100

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

® Crime

Average == e e \Window == == e \Vindow



190

180

170

160

150

140

130

120

110

100

2010

2011

Forecasting a Crime with a Trend

2012

® C(rime

2013

e Trend

2014 2015

= == = \\/indow

2016

= = == \\/indow

2017

2018



Crimes reported to Springfield, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Window Pred. Actual
Avg Type Window 2018
5 0 3-7 5

MM_ C Expected
65 -7 T 18-67 77 High
18 0o 16-20 23 High
201 -21 T 75-215 163 Expected
317 -15 T 205334 331 Expected
1065 -27 T 884-1093 1042 Expected
606 -8 C 569-643 536 Low
m 13 -2 C 2-24 5 Expected
551 -112 T 161-367 310 Expected



Signs of a casino relationship
Sgn | ypotheticalexample | Hypothetical opposite

Type of crime logically tied to
activity at casino

More offenders and victims from
outside the local area

Same category increasing in
multiple agencies

Complementary increases in
related offenses

Casino specifically mentioned by
offenders/victims

Increase is spatially related to
location of casino

Increase only happened in MGM
area, not in control communities
or statewide

Increase in robberies in
surrounding area

Increase in domestic dispute and
violence calls at area hotels

3 of 5 communities see increase
in thefts from cars

Theft, robbery, and fraud all
increase in area

Drunk drivers mention they were
last drinking at casino

Traffic collisions increase near
highway exits to and from MGM

Thefts from vehicles went up
20% in MGM area but went
down 5% everywhere else

Increase of thefts of property
at schools

Increase in domestic dispute
and violence calls at homes

1 community reports
increase in burglary while 4
report decreases

Only identity theft increases
in area

Serial burglar admits to
stealing for heroin

Traffic collisions increase on
residential roads in Hampden

Identity theft increased 20%
in MGM area but also
increased 20% statewide



Major findings

Violent crime, property crime, and total crime were all below average and

within expected ranges during the period across the communities as a
whole.

Incidents at the casino itself led to a 2% increase in violent crime, a 1%
increase in property crime, and a 2% increase in total crime in Springfield.

MGM Springfield was the top crime and call-for-service location in the
region during this period.

In the surrounding area, increases “likely” related to MGM:

o Thefts from vehicles and “other thefts” in residential areas at nighttime south
and east of MGM

° Increase in collisions on some feeder roads, mostly to south and west
° Increase in disorder on West Springfield side of bridges
o Thefts, fights, and disorderly conduct at Union Station



N L SR T
2y Resid enti ﬁ%ﬁ%{\r&gm _
e Y p,t"é_i@'b‘}er“ecg-- a

e Al -
A e iliigle Y/ [T

(u
L
N
A

T

o ;mlmll"l‘ﬁé
e M
Pl e

——— \‘r.‘
T

=

W

7

AL ‘_‘!!__,.-——.ﬁi‘ |1
% S
5 Py

=~
it}




Sy =i W
| Legend
® wmom

2018-Average Difference
1

SOUTH J_R&JILEY

ral.ge!in‘,,‘gﬁ'r ash \Wo-lu me by Bohg{ Segment

2 Avg- o i{éﬁhfs’\fz 018, September-December
g =y >~
/]

1T N Ba X

e T

— )
=
-5 | s

S - O

TR |

T T
P
T

B ifﬁlh':'}%' T AT
.. _ BN} : ir

HLCERAHAR
Wil

= i\
“.‘ L
R T VI .‘1"‘
LY o ‘liﬁﬁﬁéhjﬁggl:=ﬁg ‘
prse il WS i 7
S > 3\ § \wﬂﬁl“'“ ST
S e S i
g

. W
~ﬁﬂ‘-




/&EST SPRINGFIELD

T T T

lestuerm:;/sﬁ‘nkd\Sué%lmw ’:.f,\%rty Call\s%ﬁrWest xrlng)\fml%\
— ‘September-December 2018 / z
N
S : =
-

AGANAR




15 AaaEd

o °

B Hillﬁwe

West Springfield Purse Snatching

s ~ .
é 1500 RIVERDALE ST
2 \ 5
2 N
7 %”S""@ve

WEST s

%."n r"’ﬂ"ﬂ‘ g
I3




Other trends/notes

Union station had a 62% increase in crime from the average

No other major increases yet by type of location (hotels, restaurants,
etc.)

Many other increases during this period analyzed in report with no
connection found

Very little crime on immediate block around MGM. Thefts from vehicles
and auto theft slightly higher than normal, but low numbers.

Metro Center crime remained steady despite influx of patrons



Upcoming reports and events

May 2019: Public release of this report
July/August 2019: MGM 8-month report
July/August 2019: Encore baseline report
November 2019: PPC 4-year report

Nov/Dec 2019 : MGM one-year report
December 2019: Encore 4-month report (?)



Thank You!

Christopher W. Bruce

Crime analyst consultant to the
Massachusetts Gaming Commission

978-853-3502
cwbruce@gmail.com



Assessing the Impact of Gambling on
Public Safety in Massachusetts Cities and
Towns

Analysis of changes in police data following four
months of activity at MGM Springfield

Christopher W. Bruce

Crime Analysis Consultant to the Massachusetts Gaming Commission
19 May 2019
V.1.2



Table of contents

EXECUTIVE SUMIMIATY .ot e e e e e e e e 3
Background and methodology ..........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiic 5
Incidents at MGM Springfield ........cocoiiiiiiiiii e 14
Before-and-after analysis of crime and calls for service ... 18
=T [ o o PP SPP 18
SPIINGFIEIA .o 25
AGAWAM ..o 32
CICOPEE ...ttt 36
East LONGMEAdOW .......ooiiiiiie e s 40
[ =0 g 0o 1Yo RSP EERUTPP YA
HOIYOKE ...t a e e e e 47
LONGMEAAOW ... s 50
[T 1 [ 1SR UTRTRI 53
[\ ToT g d o F=T 1 g o] o] o PO PPPRR 57
West SPriNGfield......ooiii e 60
WIIDIaham ... 66
Massachusetts State PoliCe ..o 70
Before-and-after comparison of other variables...........oooiiiiiiiiii e 73
GEOGraphiC @NAlYSIS. ... .eiiiiie e 76
Conclusion and fULUIE Plans .........uiiiiiiiiieie et 81
Appendix: Abbreviation and definitions ...........cooiiiiiiiii i 82

Important note

This report was prepared for the Massachusetts Gaming Commission and Springfield-area police agencies by a
contracted consultant. Although both the Commission and the chief executives of the agencies were allowed to
review, comment, and offer alternate viewpoints, the final conclusions are the consultant’s and do not necessarily
reflect the views of the Gaming Commission nor the contributing police agencies.

Many statistics are offered in this report that show increases and decreases in certain categories in Springfield and
surrounding communities. In all cases, when aberrations have appeared, | have done my best to analyze them and
determine their cause. Until analyzed, statistics that indicate notable increases or decreases in activity are simply
indicators worthy of further analysis, and not proof of any particular “cause” of the changes. No statistic offered in
this report should be taken, by itself, as proof of a casino relationship. Anyone who cites or reports the statistics
without a thorough consideration of additional factors is using this report irresponsibly.







Executive summary

Briefest summary possible

MGM Springfield opened on 24 August 2018 in the midst of a dense, urban area with a historically higher-than-
average, but decreasing, crime rate. The large number of patrons drawn to the casino and their associated offenses
and victimizations have made the facility the top location for crimes and calls for service in the region, although the
overall effect on the region’s numbers is mild. In the four months after MGM opened, several property crime
patterns that may be related to the casino were reported in nearby communities, but the casino does not seem to
be associated with many large-scale, widespread increases in crime aside from what is reported at the casino itself.
Traffic-related calls, including collisions, increased, particularly to the south and west of Springfield.

About this report

e The primary purpose of this report is to conduct an analysis of the increases and decreases in activity in the
communities surrounding MGM Springfield since the casino opened, to identify which changes in activity
might be attributable to the casino, and to triage trends for more detailed analysis in later reports.

e Data was collected from the records management systems of the Springfield, Agawam, East
Longmeadow, Hampden, Holyoke, Longmeadow, Ludlow, Northampton, West Springfield, and
Wilbraham Police Departments and the Massachusetts State Police. Technology issues prevented
collection from the Chicopee Police Department (otherwise participating in this project) in time for this
report. Crime, calls for service, and collisions during the period of September-December of 2018 were
compared to the same months over the previous 5 to 8 years, depending on the data quality of the
participating agency.

e Any significant increases were analyzed in more detail with available quantitative data.

e To determine likelihood of a casino relationship, | used a rubric of my own design that analyzes the data
for several variables: logical connection to a casino, complementary increases in other communities,
complementary increases in similar crimes, evidence of increased participation from individuals outside
the local area, spatial proximity to the casino, comparison to control communities, and specific mention of
the casino or gambling in the police reports.

e  Since many of the crimes in these communities were on downward or upward trends, the report compares
2018 to a range of “expected” values depending on the strength of the past trend.

Major findings

e Hosting more than 1.5 million visitors in its first four months of operation, MGM Springfield generated
more calls for service, arrests, and crime reports than any other location in the region. The Gaming
Enforcement Unit reported the equivalent of 1,751 calls for service at the establishment between 24 August
and 31 December and made 115 arrests. The Springfield Police Department responded to the location go3
times and recorded 118 crimes. Whether these figures are objectively “high” depends on comparative
statistics from other casinos, which we do not yet have. Comparisons made by the media to Plainridge
Park’s statistics are spurious given the vastly different nature and traffic level of the two facilities.

e Although MGM Springfield is now the Springfield Police Department’s top location, it only contributed
1.9% to the city’s violent crime total, 1.1% to its property crime total, 1.9% to its overall crime total, and
1.1% to its calls for service (see the appendix for those crimes included in the violent and property crime
totals).

e More than go% of the criminal incidents reported at MGM Springfield were closed by arrest.



e Asexpected, the participating communities reported a variety of increases and decreases. | analyzed any
offense or call-for-service category that was above an 85% predictive window for the agency. Most of these
crimes, once analyzed, have failed to show an MGM relationship.

e So far, we have no confirmation of specific offenders with gambling motivations, but neither have we
asked for such data. Increases that are possibly or likely related to MGM, based on the totality of
circumstantial evidence, include:

o A pattern of nighttime thefts from vehicles and other residential thefts in neighborhoods
southeast of MGM in Springfield, East Longmeadow, and Longmeadow. This isn’t a new pattern
so much as an intensification of a longstanding problem.

o Asmall pattern of thefts from vehicles immediately adjacent to MGM.

o Anincrease in traffic collisions and traffic complaints, particularly in Agawam, West Springfield,
and Longmeadow as well as Springfield immediately around the casino.

o Anincrease in thefts, fights, and disorderly conduct at Union Station in Springfield.

o A pattern of disturbance and suspicious activity calls on streets and at retail establishments in
West Springfield near the Springfield bridges.

o Aseries of purse snatchings along Riverdale Street in West Springfield.

e Increases with an uncertain relationship to MGM that must be analyzed further, ideally with full police
narratives for the associated incidents, include:

o Anincrease in sexual assaults in Springfield. A handful are on the immediate adjacent blocks to
MGM.

o Anincrease in domestic violence in Ludlow, Wilbraham, and the area at large. (West Springfield
and East Longmeadow also reported increases in simple assaults, but these did not seem to be
domestic.)

o Anincrease in bad checks and forged checks in Northampton and Agawam.
o Apattern of fraud incidents in Springfield coded as “extortion.”

e  Except for the incidents in West Springfield mentioned above, we have not seen hypothesized increases
at facilities likely to serve visiting patrons, such as hotels, restaurants, bars, convenience stores, and gas
stations.

e The block immediately around MGM as well as the Metro Center in general showed only a few increases
given the large number of people now visiting the area. Attractors and suppressors of crime seem to have
largely neutralized each other.



Background and methodology

Background

In 2014, the Massachusetts Gaming Commission, in an effort to better assess the impacts of new gaming facilities
across the state, commissioned a series of efforts to study, assess, and prepare for the social and economic impacts
of gambling. Primary work in this area is being done by the Social and Economic Impacts of Gambling in
Massachusetts (SEIGMA) study at the University of Massachusetts Amherst School of Public Health & Health
Sciences, drawing upon research and experiences in many other states. For public safety issues specifically,
however, the MGCfelt it best to contract with someone with direct experience analyzing the crime, call-for-service,
and collision records collected daily by Commonwealth police agencies.

While many studies had attempted to study the effects of gambling on overall rates for serious crimes, aggregated
annually, hardly any studies have attempted to analyze more specific and minute changes in public safety activity
following the opening of casinos, including variations by hour, month, and season, changes in patterns and hot
spots, and changes in non-crime activity such as traffic collisions and calls for service. The MGC was interested in
the answers to these questions—in analyzing public safety at a level of detail that would actually help police
agencies anticipate and respond to emerging and changing problems.

In 2014, the MGC contracted with a career crime analyst, the author of this report, to extract data from the agencies
likely to be affected by the opening of Massachusetts’s new casinos, and to design a process for assessing changes
in those agencies' activity on a periodic basis. Work began in 2015 with baseline and first-quarter analyses of the
Plainville area, where Plainridge Park opened in June. As of this date, three years’ worth of reports have been issued
covering changes in crime and other public safety issues since Plainridge Park opened.

MGM Springfield opened in late August 2018. This is the first report that investigates that casino’s impact on the
surrounding community.

Publicly-issued and planned reports on changes in crime and police activity from this project

Issued Report Notes
Report on baseline activity at Plainville Established statistical measures for post-
August 2015 . . .
area agencies casino comparison
November Evaluation of change in police data after Few changes discernible inimmediate 3
2015 the first three months of Plainridge Park months.
Analysis of changes in police data afterthe  Identified traffic-related calls for service as
April 2016 first six months of operation at Plainridge  likely related to PPC. Noted increases in fraud-
Park Casino related crimes.
Analysis of changes in police data afterthe  Continued to note increases in traffic-related
December , ; L . . .
2016 first year of operation at Plainridge Park calls; established credit card fraud increases as
Casino “likely related.”
December Ana|y5|s of changes " police de_ata_after the Most comprehensive report so far. Included
first 2 years of operation at Plainridge Park ; :
2017 . comparative analysis of control areas.
Casino
R li ivity i ingfield- : . . .
June 2018 eport on t?ase ine activity in Springfield First report in preparation for MGM casino.
area agencies
Three-year analysis of Plainridge Park Found no additional major trends not present
March 2019 .
area. in two-year report
March 2019 Three-month analysis of MGM Springfield  This report
July 2019 Eight-month analysis of MGM Springfield




Issued Report Notes
Baseline analysis of Encore Boston Harbor

August 2019 area
December One-year analysis of MGM Springfield
2019
December Four-year analysis of Plainridge Park
2019

Methodology

The data used in this report was extracted from the individual records management systems of the Springfield,
Agawam, Chicopee, East Longmeadow, Hampden, Holyoke, Longmeadow, Ludlow, Northampton, West
Springfield, and Wilbraham Police Departments. | established an ODBC connection to each of these agencies’
records management and computer-aided dispatch databases, connected to the databases via Microsoft Access,
and used a series of “"make table” queries to copy the data into Access data tables. | then copied the Access
databases to my own computer, password-protecting themin the process, but leaving the originals on the agencies’
networks so they could be updated by designated agency members when necessary. No information specific
enough to identify any person (offender or victim) was collected, and | complied with various agency requests to
exclude particular data elements of concern to them. These requests did not affect the integrity and completeness
of the overall dataset.

After extracting the data from each individual system, | combined each table into a series of *master” tables. This
required translating each dataset into a common set of codes. The uniformity imposed by the NIBRS reporting
system (and the fact that all 11 agencies use the same records management and computer-aided dispatch systems)
made the translation fairly easy for crime tables; it was a bit more difficult for CAD tables, which have no uniform
coding even among agencies using the same system.

These master tables formed the data pool for most of the statistics in this report, except where indicated.

Casel - ReportDT - Agency - IBR - Streetl -~ | LocType - | Weapon -
17-4793- 12/31/2017 22:37:00 5P 134 KENSINGTON £ Residence Knife/Cutting
17-1377- 12/31/2017 22:30:00 SP 13A LIBERTY ST Bar Handgun
17-1540: 12/31/2017 19:08:00 SP 134 CHESTMUT ST  Other/Unknow Personal
17-5419- 12/31/2017 18:42:00 SP 120 WALDEN 5T Street Blunt Object
17-1539¢ 12/31/2017 15:07:00 SP 134 WEST ALVORD Residence Firearm
17-2072: 12(31/2017 14:44:00 WS 120 ELM ST Residence Personal
17-5412- 12/31/2017 13:17:00 HO 134 MEWTOM ST Residence Mone
17-5411- 12/31/2017 12:59:00 HO 13A ADAMS ST Street Firearm
17-2071; 12/31/2017 08:52:00 WS 134 ELM 5T Other/Unknow Knife/Cutting
17-2071: 12/31/2017 08:32:00 WS 13A BALDWIN ST  Other/Unknow Personal
17-1538f 12/30/2017 22:19:00 SP 120 WALNUT 5T Convenience 5 Handgun
17-2067: 12/30/2017 15:00:00 WS 120 ELM ST Gas Station Knife/Cutting
17-6478- 12/29/2017 23:55:00 HO 120 SOUTH 5T Street Knife/Cutting
17-5383- 12/29/2017 20:41:00 SP 13A HOPE 5T Residence Knife/Cutting
17-4770- 12/29/2017 19:59:00 SP 134 WORCESTER 5T Residence Knife/Cutting

Figure 1: The result of a query using the combined dataset.



Interpreting the statistics in this report

This report compares four months of activity post-MGM to the statistics expected for the same period had MGM
not opened. All statistics, except where noted, are for the period of 1 September to 31 December.

Throughout these reports, our goal has been to present the data using the simplest statistics possible, ensuring a
reader without statistical education can still interpret the results. Unfortunately, for this report we had to use
slightly more complex statistics than in previous reports to account for the trends already present in the Springfield
area when it comes to crime, crashes, and calls for service.

Understanding the statistics in this report requires first understanding two simple ways of predicting future volumes
of crime, calls for service, and collisions. Consider one agency, where crime has remained static over a long period:

Forecasting a Crime with No Trend

180

170 o
o

160

[
150 ()
o

140 o

et

130
120
110
100
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
® Crime Average == es e \Vindow = e e \Window

Figure 2: If a crime shows no trend over time, expected values are predicted using its average and standard deviation from the
average.

In such cases, crime may vary considerably from year to year around its average, but not in a way that indicates a
clear direction over the years. In such cases, we can “forecast” future activity by calculating the average (mean) of
the datapoints and then using a number of standard deviations (how much the data typically varies from the
average in a given year) to create upper and lower boundaries in which we would expect the data to fall a given



percentage of the time. If the data for the following year falls outside this boundary, it's a good sign that something
is affecting that category other than just the normal ebb and flow of yearly crime statistics.

This particular method for creating a “prediction window” doesn’t work well when the data exhibits a clear trend
over the time period in question. Consider this example:

180

T
o
o

160

150 o

140
130 T I I r I T T I I Ty Iy T T T L T
120

110

100
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

® Crime

Average == e= e \\indow == == e Window

Figure 3: When the crime shows an increasing or decreasing trend, the previous method of prediction does not work.

Here, forecasting based on the crime’s average and standard deviation results in a poor prediction because average
and standard deviation tell us only where the crime has been, whereas in this case, the crime is clearly going
somewhere. Hence, we need different math to forecast future activity when there’s a clear trend.

To create prediction windows when a past trend is evident (either up or down), | used basic linear regression
analysis. While this method also works for static crimes, it tends to create prediction windows too large to be useful
when the number of crimes is poorly correlated to the progression of years.



Forecasting a Crime with a Trend

190
180
170 ®
160

150 ®

140

120
110

100

2010 2011 2012

® Crime

2013

Trend

®
.
-
Ed
2014 2015 2016 2017
Window Window

2018

Figure 4: Trends require an alternate method of prediction that take into consideration the trendline and the normal variance

around the trendline.

Thus, while most statistics offered in this report contain a “window” of predicted activity for the September—
December 2018 time period, the method used to create that window varies depending on whether the category
exhibited a previous trend. In both cases, the confidence window is set to 85%, meaning that barring any significant
external influence, the 2018 figure had an 85% probability of falling within that window. If it does not fall within that
window, it could be just a statistical fluke, but it could also be evidence of some new factor influencing the category,
of which MGM is one possibility. Further analysis helps determine how likely it is that MGM is the cause.

The following is a typical table in this report:

Crimes reported to Springfield, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder 5 o C 3—7 5  Expected
Sexual Assault 65 -7 T 18-67 77 High
Kidnapping 18 ) C 16—20 23 High
Robbery 201 -21 T 75—215 163  Expected
Aggravated Assault 317 -15 T 205-334 331 Expected
Simple Assault 1065 -27 T 884-1093 1042 Expected
Threats 606 -8 C 569—-643 536 Low
Arson 13 -2 C 2-24 5  Expected
Burglary 551 -112 T 161367 310 Expected

The columns can be interpreted as follows:



e Pre-MGM Avg: The mean of the years (2010-2017 for most agencies, 2013—2017 for Springfield and the
total) prior to MGM, only for the September—December period each year.

e Slope: Over the same range of years, the amount by which the crime has increased or decreased each year
on the crime’s trendline. For instance, robbery had an average of 201, but that was roughly the midpoint
in a trendline that shows a steady decline (averaging -21 incidents per year) over the period.

e Window Type: Designates the method used for the predictive window. If the crime shows little or no trend
(i.e., a small slope compared to the mean), | used the central tendency/standard deviation method
designated by a “C.” If it showed a strong trend, | used the regression method designated by a “T.”

e Predictive Window: The window in which we would have expected the 2018 figure to fall, with 85%
confidence. The more erratic and unpredictable the past data, the wider this window will be.

e Actual 2018. The actual number of that crime observed between 1 September 2018 and 31 December 2018

e Result: "High” if the crime is outside its predictive window on the high end; “Low” if it's outside on the low
end; “Expected” if it's within the window. Please note that even “High” and “Low” crimes are not proof of
a casino influence; other factors could be at work in these communities, or 2018 could be that rare 15% of
the time where natural fluctuations cause the crime to fall outside its normal bounds. When the crime is
“High,” I have done my best to analyze it later in the section.

Determining likelihood of a casino relationship

Past studies have generally limited themselves to a purely quantitative determination of whether a casino was a
contributory factor in a crime increase. This study—which blends quantitative and qualitative approaches—is not
content to use statistics alone to determine the likelihood that any increase in activity was “caused” by the presence
of MGM Springfield. Instead, | have created a model to better explain causality when increases are observed. The
model demands a more in-depth analysis of the individual cases that make up “increased” activity during the study
period, including a qualitative analysis of police narratives.

The model considers seven factors:

1. Whether the type of activity increasing has a logical relationship to a casino. Causality is more certain when it
“makes sense” that such a crime or other activity would increase in the surrounding area in a particular way. Since
casinos draw a large number of people to an area, and since cash plays a large role in their operation, there are very
few crimes that would not fit this definition, but it’s still worth considering. An increase in theft or traffic issues has
a logical connection to a facility like a casino; an increase in harassing telephone calls or animal complaints does
not.

2. Whether more offenders and victims are from outside the local area. If there is a relationship between an observed
increase in activity and the presence of MGM Springfield, one would expect a corresponding increase in the
percentage of victims and offenders from outside the immediate community, as the majority of casino patrons are
from outside the local community.

3. Whether multiple agencies are reporting an increase in the same category. If only one agency reports a major
increase in a particular crime and call for service, the cause is more likely to be related to another factor specific to
that jurisdiction than to MGM Springfield. Complementary increases reported by multiple agencies strengthen the
likelihood of a casino relationship.

4. Whether related offenses also report increases. Some crime and call-for-service categories are closely related to

each other, so that a factor that influences one is likely to influence the others. If the casino were to cause an
increase in traffic collisions, for instance, we might expect a corresponding increase in disabled vehicles, traffic

10



complaints, and other traffic-related calls for service. An increase in a single category without increases in
complementary categories is more likely to suggest a fluke specific to that category than a casino relationship.

5. Whether the spatial distribution of offenses is related to the casino location. For certain crimes and calls for service,
if the presence of the casino caused their increase, we would expect to see a spatial distribution of incidents either
near the casino or on routes to and from the casino. An increase in “disorderly conduct” in a residential
neighborhood 15 miles from MGM Springfield is less likely to be caused by the casino than an increase in such
activity at hotels and restaurants within 1 mile of the casino.

6. Whether the casino is specifically mentioned by victims and offenders involved in cases. If an increase in activity is
causally tied to the casino, we would expect a certain percentage of victims to say that they were in town to visit
the casino, or a certain percentage of offenders (if arrested) to admit that their crimes had something to do with
the casino. If we cannot find any such evidence across multiple offenses, a casino relationship is less likely.

7. Whether comparison agencies have failed to report a similar increase. If a certain crime increased only in the MGM
Springfield area and not at identified control areas in eastern Massachusetts, this provides stronger evidence of a
casino relationship. Unfortunately, statewide data collection lags behind our data collection for the MGM
Springfield area, and thus it is only possible to assess changes in control areas for 2016 and 2017. Note also that we
cannot consider this factor with non-crime calls for service since there is no standardized reporting of this data on
a statewide basis.

The table below summarizes the factors in this model and provides hypothetical examples of when they might

argue for or against a casino relationship. The “hypothetical examples” provided are just that—those particular
changes were not actually observed.

Factor

Hypothetical example (likely to

Hypothetical opposite (not likely

be related)* to be related)

Increase in robberies in
surrounding area

Type of crime is logically tied to
activity at casino (LOG)

Increase of thefts of property at
schools

More offenders and victims are
from outside the local area (COM)

Increase in domestic dispute and
violence calls at area hotels

Increase in domestic dispute and
violence calls at area homes

Same category is increasing in
multiple agencies (REG)

3 of 5 communities see increase in
thefts from cars

1 community reports increase in
burglary while 4 report decreases

Complementary increases in
related offenses (REL)

Theft, robbery, and fraud all
increase in area

Only identity theft increases in
area

Increase is spatially related to Traffic collisions increase on Route  Traffic collisions increase on

location of casino (MAP)

Casino is specifically mentioned by
offenders/victims (NAR)

No similar increase in comparison
communities (OTH)

5 in Agawam, West Springfield

Drunk drivers mention they were
last drinking at casino

Burglary is up 10% in the
Springfield area but down 5%
across the state

residential streets in Northampton

Serial burglar admits to stealing
for heroin

Shoplifting increased 15% in the
Springfield area but also increased
15% in three control areas

Figure 5: A rubric for determining whether an increase in a crime is likely related to the new casino.

11



Application of this model helped us reach a conclusion as to whether the likelihood of an increase in crime or calls
for service was related to the presence of MGM Springfield. However, the model is not quantitative and the
determination of the likelihood of a casino relationship is not simply a matter of adding up the number of factors
present. For certain incident types, one factor may outweigh the others. For instance, the spatial relationship is
fairly important in considering the likelihood that an increase in traffic collisions is related to MGM Springfield, but
it is less important for property crimes and hardly important at all for family violence.

Limitations and threats to validity

The primary threat to the validity of the statistics in this report is the data structure of the TriTech/IMC records
management system, which makes it difficult to calculate precise crime statistics. All of the participating agencies
use this system.

Almost every other commercial records management system on the market stores crime incidents and their
associated offenses in a master table. All crimes, whether they resultin an arrest, go into the same table. If an arrest
accompanies the incident, immediately or sometime after, additional data elements specific to the arrest are
entered in supplemental arrest tables that link to the master tables. Crime statistics are calculated from the master
tables. The IMC system, in contrast, stores criminal incidents in two separate tables: arrests and non-arrests. (There
is technically a third table, storing warrants, but agencies that use this table seem to duplicate those crimes in the
incidents table.) Some incidents appear in only one table; an arrest made at the time that an incident is reported,
for instance, goes in the arrest table.

This immediately creates a problem when multiple individuals are arrested for the same incident. Two offenders
arrested for a single robbery “incident” should count as a single robbery, but there no unique index that ties two
arrest records to the same crime.

Accurate statistics cannot be calculated by simply adding the two tables, as it is possible for a single incident to
appearin bothtables. Forinstance, an incident may be reported on Monday. Lacking any evidence to make an arrest
or issue a warrant, the reporting officer enters data into the incident table. On Tuesday, evidence points to a
particular offender, he is arrested, and the officer enters the data into the arrest table.

To account for such situations, the records system contains a field in the arrest table for the original incident
number. Both the arrest and incident tables also contain the original call number, which should help deconflict
duplications. However, in practice, few agencies use these fields with any fidelity. Moreover, different crime types
can appear associated with the same incident in each of the two tables.

Finally, the TriTech/IMC system does not appear to enforce National Incident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS)
standards when it comes to the recording of secondary offenses. NIBRS recognizes “natural included offenses.” For
instance, it is assumed that every robbery is accompanied by an assault and a theft, and that almost every burglary
is accompanied by a theft and a vandalism. Thus, no single crime should report both a burglary and a theft nor a
robbery and an assault. Such extraneous offenses co-exist frequently in the IMC/TriTech system. Indeed, by failing
to distinguish between arrest charges and incident offense codes, the system creates a situation in which multiple
extraneous charges often accompany an arrest.

To account for these problems, the statistics in this report adopt the following conventions:

1. Arrests and non-arrests are combined into a single record when the proper cross-indexing values were entered
by the reporting officer in the system.

2.Even in absence of the index value entries, arrests and non-arrests are assumed to be part of the same incident if
the reporting date/time and address are the same.

12



3. Multiple arrests are combined into the same “incident” if they happened at the same location and time.

The IMC/TriTech system also makes a mistake—although this one is replicated among many RMS vendors—of
trying to resolve Massachusetts General Law codes directly to NIBRS incident type codes. This allows officers to
enter the statute violated by the offender (a code list with which they are familiar because of training and practice)
and have the system itself convert it to the appropriate NIBRS code. While this seems a valuable shortcut, in truth
there is a poor relationship between statutes and NIBRS codes, and such a system ensures that many crime types—
principally in the theft and fraud categories—will be under-reported and a few crime types will be consistently over-
reported. Inthe baseline reportissued last year, | noted the over-use of both “All Other” crime and the “Other Theft”
categories for many of the communities, with comparably (unrealistically) low volumes for specific theft categories
like thefts from vehicles, thefts from buildings, and thefts from persons.

Discussions with agency representatives

Throughout the life of this series of reports, the Massachusetts Gaming Commission has repeatedly convened
meetings with the police executives in the Springfield area to review the results of these analyses and receive their
comments and feedback. No information about changes in the area is published without giving the local chiefs a
chance to comment first. Their feedback has been incorporated into each version of the report. General agreement
with these findings has been widespread, and where anyone has disagreed or offered an alternative perspective, it
has been noted in this report.

About the author

Christopher W. Bruce is a career crime analyst with previous service at the Cambridge Police Department (1994—
2001) and the Danvers Police Department (2001-2010). He was president of the Massachusetts Association of
Crime Analysts from 2000 to 2004 and president of the International Association of Crime Analysts from 2007 to
2012; he currently serves as vice president of membership for the IACA. He has served as an instructor in criminal
justice and crime analysis topics at Suffolk University (2001-2010), Westfield State University (2009—2010), the
University of Massachusetts Lowell (2009-2010), Middlesex Community College (2007—2011), Western Oregon
University (2012-2016), and Tiffin University (2006—present).

Christopher is an internationally-recognized expert in police data systems and police data analysis. He currently
trains, consults, and provides technical assistance for various programs of the U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau
of Justice Assistance; the U.S. Department of Transportation, National Highway Traffic Safety Administration; the
Texas Department of Transportation; the U.S. Department of Justice, International Criminal Investigative Training
Assistance Program; and the International Association of Directors of Law Enforcement Standards and Training.
He lives in Maine.

13



Incidents at MGM Springfield

Both the Massachusetts State Police and the Springfield Police Department respond to incidents occurring at MGM
Springfield specifically, including the casino interior, exterior, parking garage, theater, and adjacent streets and
walkways. (To further complicate matters, State Police responses are divided between the Gaming Enforcement
Unit, which handles the bulk of the activity at the casino, and regular troopers from the local barracks.) Both
agencies log incidents in their respective databases, and in many cases, these incidents overlap (e.g., both agencies
respond and both take a report). The State Police Gaming Enforcement Unit has primary jurisdiction inside the
casino.

Two statistical sets are offered below: one for the Springfield Police and one for the Gaming Enforcement Unit at
MGM Springfield. The casino opened 24 August, so statistics for August are low and are not included at all when
comparisons to crime or calls for service in the rest of the city must be made.

Incidents at MGM Springfield reported by the Gaming Enforcement Unit

The following statistics were compiled by the Gaming Enforcement Unit from September to December of 2018.
These numbers should be considered the most authoritative of the sources for total figures at MGM Springfield;
however, they might exclude some activity in the exterior reported to the Springfield Police.

The arrest statistics (except for the total at the bottom) are not comprehensive, but they are offered for those
crimes when a specific relationship could be established between the original crime code and the arrest code. For
instance, there were 62 arrests for disorderly conduct, but these could not be associated with a specific originating
category (likely, they are spread between suspicious persons, intoxicated persons, and “assistance to security), so
they are notincluded in the arrests column. The point of showing the arrest figures when available is to demonstrate
the very high clearance rate for crimes committed at MGM Springfield. With its ubiquitous surveillance, a casino is
a spectacularly bad place to choose to commit a crime.

Crimes and other incidents, August-December 2018

Crime Type Total Arrests
Assaults 6 10 14 9 39 38
Assistance to security 8o 260 205 195 266 1006
Assistance to other agency 10 16 25 20 31 102
Firearms offenses 2 1 4 7
Fugitive from justice 2 1 6 5
Gaming violations 2 12 18 8 4 JAA 31
Theft, fraud, embezzlement 7 12 16 17 11 63 38
Counterfeiting 14 3 3 3 23
Drug investigations 6 7 5 14 8 40 25
Robbery 1 3 4 3
Sexual assault 1 2 1 4 4
Minors in casino 18 23 12 9 21 83
Intoxicated persons 18 29 34 29 32 142
Suspicious persons 13 14 15 27 33 102
Medical 16 17 12 15 26 86
Total ejections 13 77 79 89 54 312
Total arrests 8 35 27 29 16 115

14



Total Arrests

Crime Type Dec
Total criminal summonses 3 23 20 15 9 70

Incidents at MGM Springfield reported to the Springfield Police Department

Crimes, August-December 2018

Crime Type August September October November December Total
Sexual assault ) 0 ) 1 1 2
Robbery ) 1 ) ) ) 1
Aggravated assault ) 0 2 1 1 4
Simple assault 1 6 7 8 7 29
Threats 0 1 3 2 0 6
Thefts from persons 0 0 0 1 0 1
Thefts from buildings ) 5 1 1 4 11
Thefts from vehicles 0 0 1 0 0 1
Other theft 0 1 0 1 0 2
Fraud/con games ) 2 ) 1 1 4
Credit card fraud 0 1 0 2 0 3
Identity theft ) 0 0 ) 1 1
Vandalism 0 0 3 1 2 6
Drug offenses 1 2 1 1 0 5
Weapon violations 1 0 0 0 0 1
Disorderly conduct 2 10 10 8 2 32
Family offenses 1 0 ) ) 0

Trespassing 0 1 3 2

Calls for service, August-December 2018

Call Type August September October November December  Total
Administrative 0 0 0 1 1 2
Alarm ) 0 1 ) ) 1
All other 6 17 12 10 9 54
Animal complaint 0 2 0 0 0 2
Assault* o o o 4 4 8
Assist other agency 1 4 7 2 3 17
Auto theft* 0 2 0 0 0 2
Burglary* 0 0 0 0 1 1
Crime enforcement 13 104 149 174 211 651
Disabled vehicle ) 0 1 ) ) 1
Disorderly conduct ) 8 8 9 2 27
Domestic dispute 0 1 1 o 3 5
Fire o] 1 1 0 1 3
General service 1 5 5 2 4 17
Medical 3 8 6 3 4 24

15



Call Type August September October November December Total

Other theft 3 2 2 4 12
Overdose 0 0 1 0 1 2
Psychological ) 1 ) ) 5
Robbery* ) 1 ) ) 1
Service of papers 0 0 1 o o
Suspicious activity 2 2 4 6 3 17
Thefts from vehicles* 0 0 1 0 0 1
Traffic collision 4 3 1 3 6 17
Traffic enforcement 1 2 o 2 o 5
Trespassing* 0 0 0 0 1 1
Vandalism* ) 0 ) ) 1
Vehicle stop ) 1 2 4 0
Warrant service 0 2 1 2 5 10
Weapons violations 0 0 1 o o 1
Well-being check 1 o 0 2 2 5

*In the case of calls for service relating to crimes, the figures offered are for the call for service as originally
dispatched. Sometimes when an officer arrives on scene, he determines that the actual crime committed was
different than the crime dispatched. The table above this one, which records actual reported crimes, is a better
indicator of criminal activity than the call-for-service table.

How much did MGM Springfield impact Springfield’s statistics?

Nothing existed at 1 MGM Way before MGM Springfield, except a construction site, so anything that happens at
the casino specifically can be said to have directly contributed to an increase in crime in Springfield, regardless if
the casino influenced increases in crime in the area or not. The next sections of this report attempt to estimate the
impact of the casino on the surrounding community, but if we want to answer the literal impact of the casino itself,
the calculation is fairly simple: the percentage of activity at MGM Springfield divided by the total activity in the city.
The table below shows the results.

Springfield Activity, September-December 2018
Category Number at Total Springfield % New Caused by
Casino Number Casino

Violent crime offenses 41 2,152 +1.9%
Property crime offenses 29 2,543 +1.1%
Total crime offenses 156 8,154 +1.9%
Calls for service 870 79,700 +1.1%

In this sense, MGM Springfield has contributed very little to Springfield’'s “bottom line.” That said, in the four
months since it opened, it has become the single address in the 11-community area with the highest number of
crimes and calls for service. It's highest on the list if we consider State Police statistics and second-highest (after
the Holyoke Mall) if we consider municipal police statistics.

Reported crime at top locations, September-December 2018
Top Offense Location Violent Property Total Calls for

Crimes Crimes Crimes Service
State Police MGM Springfield 47 86 224 1751

16



Holyoke Holyoke Mall 15 143 219 261
Springfield MGM Springfield 41 28 155 870
West Springfield Riverdale Shops 4 60 85 155
West Springfield Big E 3 28 63 106
Springfield Union Station 11 18 53 1165
Northampton Walmart 0 36 50 104
Springfield Walmart 14 17 YA 252
Holyoke Holyoke Medical Center 4 4 40 92
Springfield CVS, 600 State St 8 19 39 203
Springfield Bay State Medical 11 6 38 242
Center
Wilbraham Home Depot 2 17 35 261
Northampton Highview 6 4 32 98
West Springfield BigY 1 27 32 YA
Holyoke Holyoke High School 14 1 31 58
Springfield Springfield Middle 21 2 31 28
School
Agawam Six Flags New England? 5 18 30 14

An open question is how MGM Springfield compares to other casinos of its size and visiting population. These
statistics have yet to be collected but will be presented after one year of data has been collected on the facility.

2 This location was only open on selected weekends during this period.

17



4-Month Comparison: All agencies

This section looks at how crimes and calls for service changed in the Springfield area between the eight years before
MGM Springfield and the four months afterwards. For Springfield and the region as a whole, the numbers exclude
MGM Springfield specifically, as they are meant to help assess notable changes in the surrounding area.

The goal here is not simply to identify what crimes increased or decreased in comparison to their norms. Crimes
fluctuate all the time for any number of reasons. Our goal is:

1. To determine which crimes increased significantly enough that some external factor—and not just random
fluctuations in data—is likely to be responsible for those increases; and

2. To analyze those significant increases for evidence that MGM Springfield is that “external factor.”
3. Toidentify trends to be investigated more thoroughly in the next report.

On advice from the Springfield Police Department regarding changes in their data quality control, | have used only
the years 2013-2017 to determine past trends and the predictive window for that agency’s crime. Since
Springfield’s total makes up so much of the region total, | also used only those years to calculate the regional trend
as well. For other agencies, | used the full 20102017 data series.

At the time of this version, because of technology issues, | was unable to collect any post-MGM data from the
Chicopee Police Department and | was unable to collect post-MGM collision data from the Holyoke Police
Department. These agencies are thus not factored into the relevant area totals.

Summary of all communities’ activity

The 10 contributing communities (temporarily minus Chicopee) saw expected volumes of overall violent, property,
and total crime, continuing the downward trends of the last decade. In total crimes, the region came in lower than
its average all year, and when it comes to the surrounding community, the opening of MGM didn’t even cause a
detectable tic in total crime.

This does not mean that there are not low-volume patterns within all this data, however. The tables below show
that simple assaults, thefts from vehicles, extortion, bad checks, and trespassing all came in higher than their
expected values, as did gunshot calls (fortunately, there’s a non-threatening explanation for that one) and crashes
involving parked vehicles. Among this data, perhaps move easily seen in the analysis of individual communities, |
find two trends that | believe are likely linked to MGM Springfield:

1. Anincrease in thefts from vehicles (as well as “other thefts” in some communities in residential areas at nighttime.

2. An increase in collisions on some roadways that feed traffic to MGM, although this increase was not as high as
expected and did not affect every community.

There is a third, vexing problem present in the data, with an uncertain MGM relationship:

3. Anincrease in domestic violence in Agawam, Ludlow, West Springfield, and Wilbraham (East Longmeadow had
an increase in simple assaults, but they don’t seem to be domestic).

See below for a full analysis of these trends and other increases in the area.

18



3500

3000

2500

1500

500

Jan Feb

Crimes by Month in Springfield-Area Communities

Apr

e ) 018

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

~»

Sep

e» a» Average of Previous 5 Years

MGM opens

==
~-

Oct

Nov

Dec

Figure 6: The opening of MGM Springfield is not detectable in the total crime trend for the region, although there are smaller increases

in some individual crimes.

Incidents reported to region, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder 7 0 C 4—10 5  Expected
Sexual Assault 132 -7 T 84—134 142 High
Kidnapping 29 -2 C 20—38 30 Expected
Robbery 274 -24 T 127-303 217 Expected
Aggravated Assault 557 o C 523-591 565  Expected
Simple Assault 1780 -19 T 1667-1792 1737  Expected
Threats 928 -10 C 867—-989 832 Low
Arson 22 -4 T 0—42 10 Expected
Burglary 1022 -156 T 544—704 676  Expected
Theft from Persons 27 -2 T 6—33 27  Expected
Purse-Snatching 13 -1 C 6—20 22 High
Shoplifting 527 -2 C 499-555 538  Expected
Theft from Building 464 -22 C 348-580 366  Expected
Theft from Machine 4 2 T 3-16 7  Expected
Theft from Vehicle 520 -35 T 362484 483  Expected
Theft of MV Parts 115 24 T 72—298 117  Expected

19



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Other Theft 1664 -381 T 0-1356 961  Expected
Auto Theft 360 -11 T 290410 244 Low

Forgery 117 -4 C 97-137 103 Expected
Fraud 231 12 T 238-268 295 High

Credit Card Fraud 100 16 T 106-181 123  Expected
Identity Theft 203 -6 C 161-245 170  Expected
Employee Theft 21 4 T 15—48 18  Expected
Extortion 7 1 T 0-16 19 High

Stolen Property 97 -7 T 49—-105 92  Expected
Vandalism 1501 -62 T 1257-1452 1305 Expected
Drugs 481 -38 T 242-516 422 Expected
Statutory Rape 18 1 C 1026 13  Expected
Pornography 19 3 T 1435 33 Expected
Prostitution 15 -3 T 0-34 2 Expected
Weapons 179 16 T 191-245 229 Expected
Bad Checks 25 -5 T 0-23 23 Expected
Disorderly 245 -17 T 74-334 203 Expected
Drunk Driving 164 -5 C 138-190 148  Expected
Drunkenness 83 -12 T 20-83 64  Expected
Family Offenses 79 29 T 56—243 157  Expected
Liquor Laws 59 -1 C 45-73 54  Expected
Trespassing 162 C 121-203 High

Violent Total T 3246-3867 3528 Expected
Property Total T 4620-6167 5576 Expected
Total T 9661-11129 10666 Expected

Sexual assault

Only Springfield experienced a significant increase in sexual assaults, but the increase was high enough to affect
the statistics for the entire area. See the discussion of the crime under Springfield’s numbers.

Purse Snatching

A review of sample reports suggests that many incidents coded by “purse snatching” are really just regular purse
thefts that should have properly been coded as thefts from persons or vehicles (see the glossary for the distinctions),
but nonetheless a couple of patterns can be seen among the incidents. Chicopee (which otherwise did not have a
significant increase) reported three incidents at the Chicopee Marketplace in September and October. West
Springfield showed a pattern along Riverdale Street, covered in that agency’s section.

Extortion

This crime is so rare that a single agency’s statistics—Springfield’s, in this case—caused a bump for the region. See
Springfield’s profile for more about this odd trend.

20



Fraud/Con Games

Only West Springfield reported uniquely high numbers in this crime category, but that was enough to affect the
area total as well. See the West Springfield agency analysis for more.

Bad checks

This rarely-reported crime (most businesses handle the problem through civil actions) had been decreasing in the
region for years, from a high of 40 in 2010 (September—-December) to a low of 15 in 2017. The 2018 total isn't
particularly high compared the norm, but it represents the reversal of a near-decade trend in the area. The primary
contributors to the increase were Northampton (7) and Agawam (5), but otherwise no patterns can be seen among
the scattered incidents. The incident type has a plausible relationship with the presence of a casino in the area, but
there are no known connections with specific offenders.

Trespassing

A statistical oddity. No individual agency showed higher-than-expected totals for this crime, but the agencies as a
whole did. The bulk of the increase comes from Springfield, at residences specifically, which is about all we can tell
without more information from the Springfield Police.

Selected calls for service reported to region, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 185 22 T 192-345 307 Expected
Disabled Vehicle 829 4 C 725-933 983 High
Disorderly 7485 105 T 7280-8714 7151 Low
Domestic Dispute 3688 46 T 3628-4120 3872 Expected
General Service 6083 -255 T 3703—-6233 5811  Expected
Gunshots 344 -13 T 206—358 366 High
Hunting 15 -1 T 4—19 17  Expected
Liquor 143 -1 C 108-178 102 Low
Lost Property 226 0 C 195-257 188 Low
Medical 7344 226 T 7339—-9002 8874  Expected
Psychological 714 195 T 1220-1776 1445  Expected
Suspicious Activity 6075 8 C 5681-6469 59oo  Expected
Traffic Collision 5684 118 T 5178—7032 6546  Expected
Traffic Complaint 1403 51 T 13491854 1671  Expected
Vagrancy 128 7 T 120-204 126  Expected

Disabled Vehicles

Unexpected volumes of disabled vehicles were reported by Chicopee and Northampton and mirrored in State Police
statistics for Route 9o and Route g1. There is a logical relationship between a facility like MGM, extra traffic to the
area, and consequent calls for disabled vehicles. Neither of the communities with increases showed concentrations
on a particular street or a particular time period, as you might expect if the increase had been caused by an individual
road condition (e.g., a bad pothole) or weather condition. | am thus tempted to designate this increase “likely”

21



related to MGM even though it appeared only in two communities. By the next report, we should know more about
this particular trend.

Gunshots

Chicopee, Holyoke, Springfield, and Wilbraham track this call type. The increase is entirely in Springfield and seems
to be related to an expansion of the ShotSpotter detection system rather than a true increase in gunshots. See the
discussion under Springfield’s agency section.

Collisions reported to region, 1 September-31 December3

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 2576 111 T 2589—3538 2661  Expected
Parked vehicle 523 20 T 551-661 571 Expected
Pedestrian 113 1 C 89-137 104 Expected
Bicyclist 46 C 32-60 42 Expected
Animal 67 8 T 67-131 87  Expected
Fixed object 285 17 T 316-394 325  Expected
Curb/barrier 156 T 170-192 170  Expected
Rollover/Jackknife 15 C 11-19 17  Expected
Other/Unknown 96 -6 T 46-99 74  Expected
Total 3878 158 T 3958-5178 4051  Expected

Although total crashes in the region were expected compared to the norm (with the exception of parked vehicle
crashes), a map of changes by individual street segments do show patterns that could be attributed to the presence
of MGM. In Springfield, crashes were higher on streets directly around the casino, north in the Metro Center,
southeast in Forest Park, and east in Old Hill. East Longmeadow, Wilbraham, Agawam, and West Springfield all
showed increases on some intersections and stat routes that could plausibly feed traffic to MGM.

3 Excludes Holyoke

22



Change‘ln Crash .

Legend

@ wow Avg: of 2013-2017 vs.
2018-Average Difference /
:Z Z CEEIDPEE

olume by Road Segment
12018 September-December
LN

Figure 7: Changes in crash volume per street segment.

Summary of crimes in each community, 1 September—31 December

H=High E=Expected L=Low
Category SP AG
Murder

N
I
m
-

I
>
I
®)
-
(@)
-
c

NH WS

ALL

Sexual Assault

Kidnapping

Robbery

Aggravated Assault

Simple Assault

Threats

Arson

Burglary

Theft from Persons

Purse-Snatching

Shoplifting

Theft from Building

Theft from Machine

Theft from Vehicle

Theft of MV Parts

Other Theft

Auto Theft

mimimm|IZ|mmjmmjmm|m|jmimjm|m|I|I|m
rjrfmm|IZTmmjr|imimmmm|I|jm|m|m|m|m
—|jijmmjr|mir-|jmimimm|mmjr |IZ|m|m|m|m
mm{ZT MM |mmimmimm|I|jm|m|m|m|m

Forgery

mimimimimmimijm|m|m|r |jmim|mjm|m|m|m|m
mimlr|mimmmijm|mm|mjmim|mjmj|r |m{|mj|m
mim|Z|m|Z|mmmmmmmm|im|m|m|m|m|m
mimimmimm|irr|jmimmm|m|m|I|jm|m|I|m|m
IT|mjrmmimimimmimmmm|rc | |mm|m|m
—imimmimmm|m|I|jmm|m|m|Ijm|m|m|m|m

mmmmmmmImmmmIImmmmmE

mirrfmmmmm|m|mimm|m|m|I|jm|m|m|I|m

23



AG CH EL HA HO LO LU NH WS Wl ALL

SP

Category

E
E

Fraud/Con Games

Credit Card Fraud
Identity Theft

E

Employee Theft

Extortion

E

Stolen Property

Vandalism
Drugs

Statutory Rape
Pornography
Prostitution

Weapons

Bad Checks
Disorderly

Drunk Driving
Drunkenness

Family Offenses
Liquor Laws
Trespassing

Violent Total

©
+
o
=
>
t
(%}
Q.
o
e
o

24



4-month comparison: Springfield

POLICE

Population (est. 2016):
154,758

Area: 33.1 square miles

Police officers: 504

City center distance from
MGM: 2.77 miles

MGM's host agency is the third largest city in Massachusetts and the fourth-largest in New England. Dense, urban,
impoverished, and historically reporting a higher-than-average rate of crime and violence, Springfield is poised to
see numerous changes from the MGM Springfield casino. The first of those—an additional 59 police officers—has
already taken place (and is reflected in the total above).

MGM opened on 24 August and has averaged 10,000 to 15,000 visitors per day. It swiftly became Springfield’s top
hot spot for crimes, calls for service, and arrests, even considering the fact that the State Police take most of the
reports. But not even a facility with as much activity as MGM can make much of a dent in a city with so much else
going on, and on Figure 5, we see the impact of MGM on the total crime trend for the year is barely perceptible,
even when we include crimes at MGM itself.

The city did show a higher-than-expected value for total crimes in the last four months of 2018. It wasn’t an increase
from the average (the total was actually down by about 13%) but rather a failure to maintain the same rate of
decrease that the city had been experiencing between 2013 and 2017. Contributing to the increase were higher-
than-expected totals in sexual assault, kidnapping, thefts from vehicles, and extortion.

We had hoped that the extra legitimate traffic in Springfield’s downtown, plus the extra law enforcement presence,
might actually help decrease crime. That may still happen, but it hasn't happened yet—at least as reflected in
citywide statistics—and not a single category was lower-than-expected for 2018.

Calls for service tended low in the last four months of 2018, with the exception of gunshots (which has a non-scary

explanation). Crashes were also unexpected normal for the city as a whole, though an analysis of specific street
segments shows that MGM may be influencing crashes in its immediate area.

25



Crimes by Month in Springfield-Area Communities

2000
MGM opens
1800 e
- - Se
" 4 - a» am -
7 -
1600 / -
— -~
— )
\ / P — e
1400 N\ Y g o
N\ 9 >
\

1200 —S /’/

1000

800

600

400

200

0
Jan Feb Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
e 7018 (n0o MGM) e» a» Average of Previous 5 Years 2018 (with MGM)

Figure 8: The opening of MGM is barely reflected in overall crime statistics, even in Springfield alone.

Crimes reported to Springfield, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder 5 0 C 3-7 5  Expected
Sexual Assault 65 -7 T 16-66 77 High
Kidnapping 18 -1 C 16-20 22 High
Robbery 192 -20 T 83-197 157  Expected
Aggravated Assault 306 -15 T 195322 317 Expected
Simple Assault 1031 -26 T 861-1055 1006  Expected
Threats 600 -8 T 507—672 527 Expected
Arson 12 -2 C 2-22 5  Expected
Burglary 543 -111 T 153—363 302 Expected
Theft from Persons 20 -3 T 2-20 20 Expected
Purse-Snatching 3 -1 T 0-5 4  Expected
Shoplifting 104 16 T 99-192 133 Expected
Theft from Building 236 -14 C 114358 236  Expected
Theft from Machine 4 2 T 4—16 7  Expected
Theft from Vehicle 288 -34 T 197264 289 High
Theft of MV Parts 69 30 T 72—231 95 Expected
Other Theft 765 -328 T 0-514 266  Expected
Auto Theft 219 -15 T 128-254 130 Expected

26



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Forgery 54 -1 C 45-63 56  Expected
Fraud/Con Games 81 6 T 63-131 88  Expected
Credit Card Fraud 50 18 T 68-123 87  Expected
Identity Theft 108 -19 T 0—144 66  Expected
Employee Theft 9 3 T 4—28 13 Expected
Extortion 5 1 T 0—9 15 High

Stolen Property 36 -3 T 6—45 37 Expected
Vandalism 737 -21 T 578-802 658  Expected
Drugs 195 2 C 151-239 166  Expected
Statutory Rape 4 -1 C 0—9 o Expected
Pornography 7 2 T 5—18 13  Expected
Prostitution 13 -3 T 0-33 2 Expected
Weapons 121 11 T 141-159 147 Expected
Bad Checks 10 -2 T 0-15 7  Expected
Disorderly 109 -12 T 11-144 92  Expected
Drunk Driving 17 -2 C 9-25 11 Expected
Drunkenness 1 0 C 0—2 o Expected
Family Offenses 65 34 T 35—263 155 Expected
Liquor Laws 14 1 C 8-20 13 Expected
Trespassing T 80-195 156  Expected
Violent Total T 1751-2262 2111 Expected
Property Total T 1574—2580 2507 Expected
Total T 4469-5254 5380 High

Sexual assault

Springfield’s total of 79 sexual assaults in the last four months of 2018 is not a record historically—the period from
2010 to 2015 has a couple of years above 70 and a high of 93 in 2011. But it is an increase from the historical trend,
which had the crime decrease to 48 and 49 respectively in 2016 and 2017. Most of the increase, accounting for 57%
of the total cases, was at residences, suggesting a relationship between the offender and victim in most events.
There are a few incidents immediately adjacent to the casino, including one at a pizzeria on Main Street and one on
the street on State Street, that | would ask the Springfield Police to investigate for a possible connection.

Kidnapping

Kidnapping can involve any number of scenarios in which one person abducts another or confines another. While
the category includes the rare stranger abduction, it more commonly consists of parental abductions or instances
in which a domestic violence offender confines or restrains a victim. The latter scenario seems to make up the bulk

of the kidnapping incidents in the last 4 months of 2018, a year that reached a five-year high for that offense. The
Springfield Crime Analysis Unit has investigated each of the cases and finds no plausible link to MGM.

Thefts from vehicles

After declining almost every year since 2011 and hitting an all-time low in 2017, thefts from vehicles reversed their
trend in 2018 and ended well above the expected value given the previous trend. The maps below show that the

27



block immediately around MGM Springfield is responsible for a small part of the increase, with cars burglarized on
the streets at all hours and days. But this pattern was a small contributor to the increasing, amounting to only about
10 incidents.

The Metro Center in general had a decrease in thefts, however, as did the surrounding residential neighborhood.
The bulk of the increase came from residences southeast of MGM, centered around the intersection known as The
X. These crimes are usually at night, often with multiple driveways targeted in a single night, with thieves looking
in particular for purses and wallets. (There was also an increase in the Liberty Heights neighborhood with many of
the same factors.) This is a pattern, discussed earlier in this report, that Springfield is sharing with Longmeadow
and East Longmeadow.

0 %%‘e‘?%om Veh’ig'lésrim,;zg17 and 2018

T
( CHICOR

VILB %
- , ;4

Legend
2017 Thefts from Vehicles
Total by Address

¢ 1

® 2

$ -

@
2018 Thefts from Vehicles
. Total by Address

* 1

. ® >

> - i
,Ey:?/ @
® wow

W / I m A T &

Figure 9: A comparison of thefts from vehicles in 2017 and 2018 shows increased hits in residential neighborhoods northwest and
southeast of MGM.

LY

I

]

Extortion

Extortion is a rare crime in any community. Also known as “blackmail,” it describes attempts to coerce money from
victims through means other than violence or threats of violence; for instance, by threatening to release
embarrassing information. Springfield’s 2018 total is a high for the agency. The Crime Analysis Unit reviewed the
data on the cases and found a pattern of telephone scams which probably should have been coded as “Fraud/Con
Games” rather than extortion.

28



& Z r‘. @ & s N & g
& SThS <3 I T PN G
. “ Thefts from Vehicles in Springfield, 2017 and 2018 =,
Y, ¢ o $O @ 3 s/ g .c.,\ N tﬁ
[ s, oF
%, ™
o) | ]
C’%%/ "
o o1
s
&
Ny
&
*
hd Legend
5, 2017 Thefts from Vehicles
Total by Address
2 S @
é‘_‘;?' . . 2
® | @
P2
'f: 4 2018 Thefts from Vehicles
% ¢| Total by Address
; & ® 1
0\. E’\ . 2
-0‘-’5&. ’\1‘3{\‘3&\\"J . 3
o N gowége . 4-5
4 N 5“(3
. 9““\0 B o .@ MGH

Figure 10: A look at thefts from vehicles immediately around MGM shows an increase on the adjacent streets, but in general,
thefts were lower in the Metro Center area.

Category

Pre-MGM

Slope

Pred.

Selected calls for service reported to Springfield, 1 September-31 December
Window

Actual

Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 157 36 T 183-312 244  Expected
Disabled Vehicle 227 19 T 190-347 300 Expected
Disturbance 3843 348 T 4358-5333 4052 Low

Domestic Dispute 3204 8o T 3126-3754 3218  Expected
Gunshots 276 -17 T 143-287 316 High

Medical 3408 112 T 29694229 4140  Expected
Psychological 862 230 T 986-1978 1218  Expected
Suspicious Activity 2516 136 T 2219-3609 2566  Expected
Traffic Collision 2308 216 T 2599-3111 2809  Expected

Gunshots

The only call for service type to increase in Springfield is arguably the most serious. The 2018 gunshot total was the
highest since 2013 and it reversed a generally decreasing trend over the five years. Fortunately, the number of

29



gunshot reports does not seem to have translated to more people shot, as aggravated assault and homicide were
both in their expected ranges. (Keep in mind, too, that the category has a lot of “false positives,” with other sounds
mistaken by either callers or automated systems as gunshots.) Gunshots were actually up for the entire year, not
just the last four months, and the increase seems to be tied to an expansion of the city’s ShotSpotter installation—
an automated system for detecting gunshots—a plan announced in late 20174 If we remove from consideration

those shots reported by ShotSpotter, the total becomes 102 against an expected range of 103—141, which is low for
the time period.

The map below shows 2017 and 2018 gunshot calls reported by ShotSpotter, and it clearly shows extra detections
in the expanded areas to the east and southeast. In summary, not only is the increase in gunshot calls not related
to MGM Springfield, it is more of an increase in detection than an increase in the actual number of shots fired.

/

Gunshot calls-for-sérvice as original reported by ShotSpotter

o -

o b, &
A & o \/ [}
A “ ‘:. b ®e
Ad @
i e At
Ao W MR ..
A4 04 0g 4,
® ®
ADA S e ’
{J A 09 @
o obage oo
» (o ol
® a® o [ ) ® ‘{'
Legend ’ LR |
o Ve A
Gunshots J L4 ‘; ® ; *
September-December
A 2017 o i
@ 2018 . N r
® wem %'
i
5
Collisions reported to Springfield, 1 September-31 December
Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018
Vehicle in traffic 1112 92 T 1216-1475 1318  Expected
Parked vehicle 199 13 T 200-257 249 Expected
Pedestrian 65 1 C 55—75 71 Expected

4 Crombleholme, H. (2017, September 10). Springfield expanding ShotSpotter system. WWLP.com Retrieved from https://www.
wwlp.com/news/crime/springfield-expanding-shotspotter-system_20180314102839488/1043337010

30



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Bicyclist 26 1 C 20-32 26  Expected
Animal 5 -1 C 2-8 3  Expected
Fixed object 129 3 C 106—152 147 Expected
Curb/barrier 62 5 T 50—-96 70  Expected
Rollover/Jackknife 4 -1 T 0-6 2 Expected
Other/Unknown 25 -3 T 0-37 14  Expected
Total 1624 110 T 1740-2055 1900 Expected

A facility expected to draw several million visitors per year was naturally expected to have a traffic impact on the
surrounding community. In Springfield’s case, the local roads seem to have borne the extra burden well. While total
crashes did increase by about 100 over 2017, the total was consistent with the trend that Springfield was on whether

the casino was built or not.

Springfield’s accident totals clash a bit with Figure 3 (earlier in the report), which shows increases in collisions by
street segment and highlights many of those segments directly around MGM. It's possible that MGM did have an
impact on the number of accidents in its immediate vicinity while still not appreciably increasing overall accident
totals. We'll do a more thorough crash analysis of the area when more data is available in the next report.

31




4-month comparison: Agawam

SR G Springfiekd

Police officers: 47

Population (est. 2016): 28,718

Area: 24.2 square miles

City center distance from
MGM: 7.97 miles

Just across the river from the new casino, Agawam'’s northeast corner practically touches MGM Springfield. There
is some evidence that, like West Springfield, Agawam'’s increase in traffic collisions in 2018 can be at least partly
attributed to the extra traffic brought by MGM. For crime, however, the agency had little that suggested an MGM
nexus. Increases in thefts from vehicles and pornography probably have nothing to do with the casino. The agency
is one of several experiencing an increase in domestic violence, which has an uncertain casino connection.

Crimes reported to Agawam, 1 September—-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Sexual Assault 4 ) C 1-7 4  Expected
Kidnapping ) ) T 0-1 o Expected
Robbery 3 ) T 2—7 3 Expected
Aggravated Assault 15 3 T 1637 24  Expected
Simple Assault 41 5 T 46-72 78 High
Threats 12 2 T 9—28 24  Expected
Arson 1 0 C 0—2 o Expected
Burglary 47 6 T 33-118 52  Expected
Theft from Persons ) ) T 0—1 Expected
Purse-Snatching 1 ) C 0—2 Expected
Shoplifting 6 2 T 9—20 7 Low
Theft from Building 10 2 T 10—26 12 Expected
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected

32



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Theft from Vehicle 3 ) T 03 5 High

Theft of MV Parts 1 ) C 03 2 Expected
Other Theft 58 6 T 61-107 73 Expected
Auto Theft 11 1 T 8-20 6 Low

Forgery 5 1 T 6-15 4 Low

Fraud/Con Games 13 2 T 13-32 27  Expected
Credit Card Fraud 3 0 C 1-§ 2 Expected
Identity Theft 8 2 T 12-22 19 Expected
Employee Theft 1 0 T 0—3 o Expected
Extortion 1 ) T 03 2 Expected
Stolen Property 4 1 T 6-15 5 Low

Vandalism 36 3 T 2471 65 Expected
Drugs 13 -2 T 0—20 10 Expected
Statutory Rape 3 0 C 0-6 1 Expected
Pornography 1 ) T 0—3 5 High

Prostitution 0 0 T 0—0 o Expected
Weapons 3 0 C 1-5 2 Expected
Bad Checks 2 o T 0-5§ 5  Expected
Disorderly 12 -2 T 0-12 9 Expected
Drunk Driving 12 -1 T 0-18 11 Expected
Drunkenness 2 1 T 0-10 o Expected
Family Offenses 1 C 031 o Expected
Liquor Laws 0 C 0-8 1 Expected
Trespassing 0 C 2-8 Expected
Violent Total 9 T 89-130 High

Property Total 8 T 236-415 Expected
Total T 218-728 Expected

Simple Assault

Simple assaults have been on an upward trend in Agawam, starting at 18 (for this for-month period) in 2010 and
gaining about 5 per year to reach highs of over 50 in 2016 and 2017. But in 2018, it shot up to 78. Incidents are evenly
split between domestic and non-domestic assaults (based on crime code). About a third of the increase is localized
at Six Flags. The location rarely reports more than one assault per quarter, but it had seven in the last four months
of 2018.

The increase in domestic assaults is particularly troubling, and it matches trends seen in the other communities. In
Agawam'’s case, the trend did not begin until September of 2018, and from there scattered throughout the
residential community. As with the other communities seeing this increase, we will have to conduct a full analysis
of the police narratives to understand the trend should it continue into the next reporting period.

Thefts from vehicles

Agawam rarely reports this crime, so the September-December 2018 total of 5 is still unusually high for the town—
the highest, in fact, since 2011. The increase is the result of a one-day spree at Six Flags on Saturday, 8 September

33



2018, in which three cars were burglarized between 12:30 and 17:30 and stole the owners’ wallets and purses. Such
sprees have been seen in the past at the same location, in pairs or triplets, but this was the first in several years
during these months. There may be a tangential MGM relationship if MGM can be shown to have increased
attendance at Six Flags.

Pornography

An unusual high of 5 pornography offenses were reported by Agawam in the last four months of 2018. Among them
are three charges of "Distributing Obscene Matter” and one each of "Distributing Obscene Matter to a Minor” and
“Possession of Child Pornography.” Among the five cases, only two offenders are listed: a 34-year-old West
Springfield man and a 30-year-old Agawam man. The Agawam Police will have to report if they wish on any more
details regarding this trend.

Selected calls for service reported to Agawam, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Disabled Vehicle 108 5 T 78-165 164  Expected
Disorderly 132 2 C 108-156 138  Expected
Domestic Dispute 104 -5 T 37-124 122 Expected
General Service 354 19 T 310-518 556 High
Hunting 8 0 C 5-11 4 Low
Lost Property 5 C 2-8 16 High
Medical 550 29 T 487-829 727  Expected
Psychological 5 1 T 5—14 7  Expected
Suspicious Activity 432 13 T 370-593 502  Expected
Traffic Collision 282 6 C 235-329 346 High
Traffic Complaint 110 T 93142 133 Expected

General service

Calls in this category increased heavily in October and December of 2018, but in general the category was high for
the entire year and not just the last four months. The police headquarters accounted for about one-third of the
increase, and almost the entirety of the increase was concentrated in the early morning hours between 00:00 and
04:00. Unfortunately, there is little else within the data to explain this trend.

Traffic collisions

Both calls for service and reported traffic collisions were well above their norms in Agawam during this period, and
in this case the increase did not begin until the final third of the year. North and South Westfield Streets, Springfield
Street, and Route 5 north accounted for most of the call increase, all of which could indicate heavier traffic heading
through town to the casino.

Collisions reported to Agawam, 1 September—31 December
Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018
Vehicle in traffic 132 2 C 111-153 178 High

34



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Parked vehicle 16 ) C 11-21 41 High
Pedestrian 3 o C 1-5 2 Expected
Bicyclist 1 ) T 0-2 Expected
Animal 3 ) C 0-6 Expected
Fixed object 19 1 C 11-27 35 High
Curb/barrier 10 1 T 6—18 17  Expected
Rollover/Jackknife 2 ) T 0—3 1 Expected
Other/Unknown 5 ) C 2-8 10 High
Total 190 4 T 152242 288 High

Like nearby West Springfield, Agawam had a higher-than-expected collision total for the last four months of 2018,
with the brunt of the increase seen on Main Street, Route 5 south, South Westfield Street, and Springfield Street.

35



4-month comparison: Chicopee

Population (est. 2016): 55,991
Area: 23.9 square miles
Police officers: 132

City center distance from MGM:
5.52 miles

Chicopee was unable to participate in this four-month analysis because of a problem extracting data from the
RMS and CAD systems. The blank tables have been left here in case of a last-minute ability to participate. The
technical issues should be cleared up by the 8-month report.

Crimes reported to Chicopee, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Type Window 2018

Murder ) ) T 0—2 o Expected
Sexual Assault 19 -1 T 6—24 18  Expected
Kidnapping 5 C 19 4  Expected
Robbery 23 C 17—29 26  Expected
Aggravated Assault 52 -1 C 45-59 60 High
Simple Assault 228 -1 C 217-239 192 Low
Threats 95 1 C 82—-108 86  Expected
Arson ) ) T 0-0 o Expected
Burglary 146 -10 T 37-170 127  Expected
Theft from Persons 2 o C 0—4 4 Expected
Purse-Snatching 3 ) T 1-8 7  Expected
Shoplifting 51 -2 T 2462 49  Expected
Theft from Building 59 -2 T 30-76 16 Low
Theft from Machine 0 0 C 0—-0 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle L C 36-52 27 Low

36



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018
Theft of MV Parts 42 -5 T 5—43 10 Expected
Other Theft 104 1 C 85-123 120 Expected
Auto Theft 39 C 32-46 22 Low
Forgery 15 C 12—18 9 Low
Fraud/Con Games 50 -3 T 13-58 52  Expected
Credit Card Fraud 7 -1 T 0-8 3 Expected
Identity Theft 28 3 T 30-54 36  Expected
Employee Theft C 2-6 2 Expected
Extortion 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Stolen Property 10 -1 T 0-10 6  Expected
Vandalism 161 -8 T 104—145 155 High
Drugs 30 -1 C 19-41 32  Expected
Statutory Rape 3 ) C 1-5 4 Expected
Pornography 3 ) C 0-6 3 Expected
Prostitution 0 0 C 0-1 o Expected
Weapons 12 0 C 6-18 18  Expected
Bad Checks 4 o C 2-6 1 Low
Disorderly 28 -3 T 1-27 23  Expected
Drunk Driving 16 -1 T 2-16 29 High
Drunkenness 31 -5 T 0—26 26  Expected
Family Offenses 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Liquor Laws C 2-8 19 High
Trespassing 17 -2 T 0-17 20 High
Violent Total C 393-453 Low
Property Total T 554—1109 Expected
Total T 1010-1354 Expected

Aggravated Assault

Chicopee was the only community t o report an increase in aggravated assault during this period, and it wasn't a
huge one, exceeding its expected range only by a single incident. There is a mild increase at residences, suggesting
domestic assault, but the bulk of the increase (for location type) is found in the “Other/Unknown” category, which
does not help. Similarly unhelpful is that the only weapon to significantly increase was also “other.” A review of
offenders shows that most of them come from Chicopee itself, and most of the incidents seem to involve adult
males as both victims and offenders. A lack of similar increases in other communities, as well as a lack of a logical
tie between this crime and a casino, makes an MGM relationship unlikely, but we will conduct further analysis if the
trend persists into the next reporting period.

Vandalism

Chicopee’sincrease in vandalism has affected mostly residential properties in November and December. Groupings
of incidents by day suggests that the increase is a result of several one-night sprees. There are also a couple of
individual addresses that each reported 3 or 4 incidents. With no other community reporting a similar increase, and
on logical connection between this crime type and a casino, it is likely unrelated to MGM.

37



Drunk Driving

Chicopee saw a spike in drunk driving arrests in October, although with no particular day or time concentrations.
The incidents are scattered about the west side of town and while many of them could plausibly be on MGM routes,
there is no particular concentration in that direction. Given the similar increase in “open container” charges during
the same period, the evidence suggests a period of intensified traffic enforcement by the Chicopee Police rather
than more drunk driving per se, particularly since no other agency reported a similar increase.

Liquor Laws

As with drunk driving, Chicopee was the only agency to report a significant increase in this offense type. All but one
of the offenses involved open containers of liquor in stopped vehicles, suggesting again an increase in traffic
enforcement in the fall of 2018 rather than a real increase in consumption of alcohol.

Trespassing

The increase is tied entirely to two addresses: the Wal-Mart at 591 Memorial Drive and the Shell gas station at g5
West Street. In neither case is there any reason to think there is any MGM involvement.

Selected calls for service reported to Chicopee, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018
Abandoned Vehicle 16 ) C 9-23 25 High
Disabled Vehicle 122 2 C 100-144 148 High
Disturbance 999 -14 T 827-1111 732 Low
General Service 692 14 C 559—-825 702  Expected
Medical 511 30 T 44,2-812 673 Expected
Overdose 21 8 T 27-79 53  Expected
Suspicious Activity 563 8 C 479-647 604  Expected
Traffic Collision 744 14 T 663-933 818  Expected
Traffic Complaint 510 38 T 470-855 670 Expected
Abandoned Vehicle

The agency saw an unusual spike in these calls in December, but not in a way that is spatially or logically related to
MGM Springfield.

Disabled Vehicle

Chicopee saw a significant increase in disabled motor vehicle calls from September to November. It is spread
equally across days, times, and regions of the city. Of the other communities, only Northampton reported a similar
increase in this call, but it still may be related to extra traffic heading through the community to MGM.

38



Collisions reported to Chicopee, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 361 13 T 340—492 398 Expected
Parked vehicle 106 1 C 91-121 127 High
Pedestrian 13 -1 T 3-15 13  Expected
Bicyclist 6 ) C 48 7  Expected
Animal 2 ) T 1-6 5  Expected
Fixed object 37 2 T 28-66 39 Expected
Curb/barrier 26 0 C 20-32 37 High
Rollover/Jackknife 3 1 T 4—9 5  Expected
Other/Unknown 15 ) T 10-17 11 Expected
Total 569 17 T 527-741 642 Expected

Collisions have been increasing steadily in Chicopee since 2012. The 2018 figure was within the expected window
given the existing trend, but parked vehicle collisions and curb/barrier collisions were a bit higher than their
individual trends would have predicted. The increase, more oddly, is entirely confined to November, though not on
any particular day or at any particular location. There is evidence that MGM has led to increased collisions on some
area roads, and thus may be behind Chicopee’s specific patterns. By the next report, we should know if the trend is
holding.

39



4-month comparison: East Longmeadow

Population (est. 2016): 16,267

Area: 13.0 square miles

Police officers: 26

City center distance from MGM:
5.28 miles

As with most communities in this study, we did not see any major increases on travel routes through the town.
However, we did see some thefts spill over the soft northern border that the community shares with Springfield;
see below for an analysis of that pattern. Thea agency also reported an increase in simple assaults during the last
four months of 2018. Most calls for service and traffic collisions, on the other hand, came in at expected volumes.

Crimes reported to East Longmeadow, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder 0 0 C 0—-0 o Expected
Sexual Assault 3 ) C 0—7 1 Expected
Kidnapping ) 0 T 0-1 o Expected
Robbery 1 ) C 0-2 2 Expected
Aggravated Assault 5 -1 T 0—7 7  Expected
Simple Assault 22 -2 T 0-25 33 High
Threats 19 -4 T 0-14 11 Expected
Arson 0 0 C 01 o Expected
Burglary 17 -2 T 0—21 6  Expected
Theft from Persons ) ) C 0—1 Expected
Purse-Snatching 1 0 T 0-1 Expected
Shoplifting 17 -1 C 10-24 17  Expected
Theft from Building 10 ) C 6-14 3 Low
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle 16 -3 T 0-19 25 High
Theft of MV Parts 3 -1 T 0-3 1 Expected

40



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Other Theft 38 -2 T 647 53 High

Auto Theft 4 0 C 1-7 5  Expected
Forgery 2 ) C 0—4 1 Expected
Fraud/Con Games 12 ) C 8-16 11 Expected
Credit Card Fraud 3 0 C 1-§ 2 Expected
Identity Theft 2 ) C 0—4 1 Expected
Employee Theft ) ) T 0—2 1 Expected
Extortion 0 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Stolen Property 3 0 C 0—7 o Expected
Vandalism 36 -6 T 0—29 21 Expected
Drugs 12 -1 T 0-19 7  Expected
Statutory Rape 1 0 C 0-3 3 Expected
Pornography 1 0 C 0—2 3 High

Prostitution 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Weapons 2 0 C 0—4 2 Expected
Bad Checks 2 0 C 0-5 o Expected
Disorderly 5 -1 T 0-6 4  Expected
Drunk Driving 10 1 T 5—25 8 Expected
Drunkenness 2 ) C 0—4 1 Expected
Family Offenses ) ) C 0-1 1 Expected
Liquor Laws 3 ) C 0-6 o Expected
Trespassing 6 C 3 Expected
Violent Total T High

Property Total T Expected
Total T Expected

Simple assault

Like several other communities, East Longmeadow saw an increase in simple assaults during this period, which also
had the effect of increasing its total violent crime. Unlike the other communities, East Longmeadow'’s increase is
not obviously composed of domestic assaults. The charge codes do not indicate family violence, and the location
type codes where the assaults increased include grocery stores, offices, schools, and streets, but not residences. A
full narrative analysis will be necessary to determine the cause of the increase here.

Thefts from vehicles and other theft

Since MGM Springfield opened, East Longmeadow has seen an increase in thefts from vehicles from residential
driveways, plus miscellaneous residential thefts (the data is unclear, but | suspect sheds, yards, open garages,
anything short of a burglary), mostly but not universally at night, targeting primarily wallets and purses with cash
and credit cards, although there’s a high “other” total in the property type data. Among the incidents are several
one-night sprees in which multiple residences are hit on the same evening.

The two crimes together amount to about 46 cases in the last four months of 2018, accounting for most of the
increase in these two crime categories. The incidents are concentrated on the north half of town near the

41



Springfield border, particularly the northwest corner off Route 83. The agency shares this pattern with East
Longmeadow and Springfield itself.

This pattern is not new to the agency: the northern half of the town has consistently reported 30-50 such residential
thefts per year. But the crime had been decreasing steadily, and 2018 brought a reversal and intensification of this
longstanding issue. While we do not yet have confirmation that any specific offender was motivated by a desire for
gambling funds, the totality of the circumstantial evidence (multiple agencies involved, clear spatial relationship to
the casino, a logical connection to the crime) makes me think that the pattern has, at least in part, a likely MGM
Springfield relationship.

Pornography
Three pornography incidents recorded by East Longmeadow in the final months of 2018 represent an unusual spike
for the community. One of the incidents involves three men arrested for enticing and sharing sexually explicit

images with an 11-year-old boy on social media apps. The other two cases seem to involve children sharing nude
images with each other. None of the cases point to any MGM influence.

Selected calls for service reported to East Longmeadow, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Disabled Vehicle 15 ) C 8-22 o Low
Disturbance 10 C 4—16 o Low
Domestic Dispute 25 T 23-80 72 Expected
General Service 415 -19 T 237-381 567 High
Liquor 1 0 C 0—4 o Expected
Lost Property 11 -1 T 1-10 0 Low
Medical 582 20 T 577—720 763 High
Psychological 2 1 T 2-12 ) Low
Suspicious Activity 332 -5 T 264-371 275  Expected
Traffic Collision 188 -1 C 167-209 169 Expected
Traffic Complaint 1 0 C 0-3 o Expected

General service

East Longmeadow's large increase in this category is made up of about 150 extra “assistance” calls spread all over
town at all hours and days.

Medical

Like the general service calls, an increase in medical calls is indicative of more people in a community in general.
East Longmeadow’s medical aid total has increased steadily since 2010 but outpaced even expectations based on
the trend to hit a 9-year high in 2018, with a particular acceleration in the final four months. The increase is tied to
five particular addresses, two of them retirement homes, two of them nursing and rehab facilities, and one a public
housing address. The increase thus seems to be related more to an aging residential community than a visiting one.

42



Collisions reported to East Longmeadow, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 116 ) C 105—127 99 Low
Parked vehicle 26 -1 C 19-33 25 Expected
Pedestrian ) C 1-5 2 Expected
Bicyclist 2 ) T 0—2 2 Expected
Animal 14 ) C 8—20 16  Expected
Fixed object 14 0 C 9-19 18  Expected
Curb/barrier 6 0 C 48 5  Expected
Rollover/Jackknife o C 0—2 3 High
Other/Unknown 9 -1 T 0-10 4  Expected
Total 190 -2 C 167-213 174 Expected

Collisions in East Longmeadow were on the lower end of normal for the study period. The “high” value in rollover
and jackknife accidents represents a 1-crash increase over a very small normal number. If East Longmeadow is
seeing extra traffic because of MGM Springfield, it is not being reflected in its collisions.

43



4-month comparison: Hampden

Population (est. 2016): 5,227

Area: 19.7 square miles

Police officers: 11

City center distance from MGM:

9.06 miles

The most geographically isolated of the 11 communities int his study (the town has no highways, major state routes,
or PVTA bus routes), it was always a long shot that this low-crime community would see much activity post-MGM.
During the last four months of 2018, the agency saw expected volumes of violent and total crimes and set a g-year
low for property crimes. Its only significant increase was in identity theft, and that was only 1 incident above the
expected value, for a total of 3. The only call for service to see a significant increase was hunting-related calls, and

traffic collisions were normal in all categories.

Crimes reported to Hampden, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Sexual Assault ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Kidnapping ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Robbery ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Aggravated Assault 1 ) C 0-2 1 Expected
Simple Assault 3 ) C 0-6 2 Expected
Threats 2 ) T 03 1 Expected
Arson 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Burglary 6 0 C 1-11 0 Low
Theft from Persons ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Purse-Snatching ) 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Shoplifting ) ) C 0-1 o Expected
Theft from Building 4 -1 T 0-5 1 Expected
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected

44



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Theft from Vehicle 2 ) C 0-5 2 Expected
Theft of MV Parts ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Other Theft 8 0 C 1-15 2 Expected
Auto Theft 1 0 C 0-3 2 Expected
Forgery 0 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Fraud/Con Games 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Credit Card Fraud ) ) T 0—0 o Expected
Identity Theft 1 ) C 0-2 3 High

Employee Theft 0 0 C 0—-0 o Expected
Extortion 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Stolen Property 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Vandalism 10 -1 C 3-17 6  Expected
Drugs 1 ) C 0-2 o Expected
Statutory Rape 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Pornography ) ) T 0—1 o Expected
Prostitution 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Weapons 0 0 T 01 o Expected
Bad Checks ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Disorderly 1 ) T 0—2 o Expected
Drunk Driving 4 ) C 1-7 2 Expected
Drunkenness 1 ) C 0—3 1 Expected
Family Offenses 0 0 C 0-0 o Expected
Liquor Laws 2 0 C 05 1 Expected
Trespassing 2 0 C 0-6 1 Expected
Violent Total 5 o C 4 Expected
Property Total 5 T 6 Low

Total 6 T Expected

Identity theft

The only crime to show a significant increase in 2018, Hampden'’s “high” of three identity thefts were reported on
per month in October, November, and December, all at the front desk of the police station. There isn't enough data
to determine a pattern among them, but the small number, and the lack of a regional increase make an MGM
connection unlikely.

Selected calls for service reported to Hampden, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 1 ) C 0—2 1 Expected

Disabled Vehicle 12 -1 T 1-13 8 Expected

Disturbance 12 -1 C 5-19 8 Expected

Domestic Dispute 9 0 C 6—12 8 Expected

45



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018
General Service 314 12 T 283—459 291 Expected
Hunting 3 -1 T 0—4 5 High
Medical 97 -1 C 78-116 112 Expected
Suspicious Activity 68 -5 T 28-70 53 Expected
Traffic Collision 30 3 T 22-62 26  Expected
Traffic Complaint 3 0 C 1-§ o) Low

Hunting

Hampden joins nearby Wilbraham in an increase in hunting-related complaints, heavily focused in December 2018.
There is otherwise no time, day, or geographic concentration, nor any more hints in the CAD data about why such
calls were unusually high last year. The increase was only in the last four months of the year (there were no
complaints before September).

Collisions reported to Hampden, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 5 1 T 4—13 6  Expected
Parked vehicle 2 0 C 1-3 3 Expected
Pedestrian ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Bicyclist 0 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Animal 7 2 T 3—26 6  Expected
Fixed object 6 0 T 5—10 6  Expected
Curb/barrier 2 ) C 0—4 o Expected
Rollover/Jackknife ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Other/Unknown 2 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Total 25 2 T 19-52 21 Expected

Hampden had no discernible increase in any collision type during the last four months of 2018. Totals for all
categories were expected based on past trends, and tended toward the lower end of their ranges. And odd spike in
animal collisions in 2017 did not recur.



4-month comparison: Holyoke

Holyoke

Population (est. 2016): 40,341
Area: 22.8 square miles

Police officers: 124

City center distance from MGM:
} L 7.97 miles

As one of the more removed jurisdictions from MGM, Holyoke didn't seem to feel much influence from the casino,
and all of its crimes except weapons violations were either expected or low for the period. (In particular, the agency
reported by far the lowest property crime total in at least g years.) Its calls for service were also average-to-low.
Unfortunately, | could not obtain collision data from the agency in time for this report, but CAD calls for traffic
collisions were normal.

Holyoke has a lot of bars, restaurants, hotels, convenience stores, and gas stations that might ultimately see an
increase in activity from MGM patrons, but this has not been reflected in the statistics so far. We will continue to
monitor.

Crimes reported to Holyoke, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Sexual Assault 10 ) C 6-14 9 Expected
Kidnapping 3 ) T 0—4 2 Expected
Robbery 37 o C 26—48 20 Low
Aggravated Assault 89 2 C 73—105 77  Expected
Simple Assault 266 -10 T 151-304 224  Expected
Threats 137 -3 C 113-161 116  Expected
Arson 4 ) C 2-6 2 Expected
Burglary 142 -10 T 58-149 77  Expected
Theft from Persons ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Purse-Snatching ) 0 T 01 1 Expected

47



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Shoplifting 173 -13 T 97-145 126  Expected
Theft from Building 4 o C 1-7 7  Expected
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle 80 A C 51-109 51 Expected
Theft of MV Parts 5 -1 T 0-8 1 Expected
Other Theft 411 -9 C 338-484 210 Low

Auto Theft 45 -3 C 2466 40  Expected
Forgery 14 -1 T 0-18 13  Expected
Fraud/Con Games 1 0 C 0—2 1 Expected
Credit Card Fraud 18 1 C 1323 20 Expected
Identity Theft 0 0 C 0-0 o Expected
Employee Theft 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Extortion ) C 0—3 1 Expected
Stolen Property 23 -1 C 16—30 22  Expected
Vandalism 325 -24 T 170-299 191  Expected
Drugs 158 -5 C 114—202 169 Expected
Statutory Rape 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Pornography 1 ) T 0—4 3  Expected
Prostitution 1 0 C 0—3 o Expected
Weapons 26 0 C 19-33 45 High

Bad Checks ) ) C 0—0 2 Expected
Disorderly 63 A T 2571 49  Expected
Drunk Driving 16 -2 T 0-21 16  Expected
Drunkenness ) C 0—0 o Expected
Family Offenses 0 C 01 o Expected
Liquor Laws 2 -1 T 0—2 o Expected
Trespassing 28 -12 T 0-15 o Expected
Violent Total T 402-610 Expected
Property Total T 854-1163 Low

Total T 1374-1988 Expected

Weapon violations

Weapons violations were Holyoke's one increase during this period. The increase is made up of firearms offenses of
all types; the charge of carrying ammunition without an FID card makes up about half of it. Another third consists
of an increase in charges for carrying firearms without a license. Holyoke is some distance from MGM Springfield,
and there is no spatial relationship between the incidents and the casino. Since statistics for this crime are heavily
influenced by proactive police work and enforcement, the increase suggests a special operation or focus specific to
Holyoke during this period.

Selected calls for service reported to Holyoke, 1 September-31 December

48



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018
Abandoned Vehicle 34 -2 T 7—42 24  Expected
Disabled Vehicle 99 1 C 83—115 92  Expected
Disorderly 1102 -22 T 912-1145 897 Low
Domestic Dispute 119 -1 C 92-146 109 Expected
General Service 461 4 C 407-515 383 Low
Gunshots Ll -2 T 21-51 44, Expected
Liquor 28 0 C 1937 25 Expected
Lost Property 37 -2 T 16—45 23 Expected
Medical 522 40 T 537-867 528 Low
Overdose 19 6 T 18-66 49  Expected
Psychological 62 16 T 13—218 192  Expected
Suspicious Activity 425 -6 C 359-491 316 Low
Traffic Collision 697 1 C 629-765 692  Expected
Traffic Complaint 63 -2 C 41-85 41 Expected

No call for service type in Holyoke exceeded its expected window for the period.

Collisions reported to Holyoke, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic

Parked vehicle

Pedestrian

Bicyclist

Animal

Fixed object

Curb/barrier

Rollover/Jackknife

Other/Unknown

Total

I was unable to collect collision data from Holyoke for the September-December time period because of an issue
with the ODBC connection to the RMS. IMC was notified, but it is unknown if they ever repaired the issue.



4-month comparison: Longmeadow

Population (est. 2016): 15,876
Area: 9.7 square miles

Police officers: 26

City center distance from MGM:
3.67 miles

Longmeadow is physically close to Springfield and MGM, and the northern part of the town has often seen a
spillover of crime from Springfield’s summer neighborhoods. In respect to thefts from vehicles and other thefts
form residences, this trend intensified in 2018, as discussed below. Longmeadow also saw increases in traffic
complaints and traffic collisions, both of which may reflect increased traffic volume coming through the town on
the way to MGM.

Crimes reported to Longmeadow, 1 September—31 December

Category Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Type Window 2018

Murder ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Sexual Assault 1 ) T 14 2 Expected
Kidnapping ) 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Robbery 1 ) T 0-1 o Expected
Aggravated Assault 1 ) C 0—3 2 Expected
Simple Assault 5 ) C 4—6 5  Expected
Threats 5 0 T 2-§ 2 Expected
Arson 0 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Burglary 13 0 C 7-19 13  Expected
Theft from Persons 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Purse-Snatching 0 C 0—-1 o Expected
Shoplifting 3 ) C 0-6 5  Expected
Theft from Building 12 1 C 2-22 6 Expected
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle 14 -2 T 0-17 18 High

50



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Theft of MV Parts ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Other Theft 24 -4 T 0-18 26 High

Auto Theft 3 0 C 0-6 6 Expected
Forgery 2 ) C 0—4 o Expected
Fraud/Con Games 8 0 C 3-13 9 Expected
Credit Card Fraud 2 ) C 0—4 1 Expected
Identity Theft 7 1 T 6-15 6  Expected
Employee Theft 1 0 T 01 o Expected
Extortion 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Stolen Property 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Vandalism 20 -1 C 12-28 5 Low

Drugs 1 ) C 0-2 1 Expected
Statutory Rape 0 0 T 0—2 o Expected
Pornography ) ) C 01 o Expected
Prostitution 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Weapons 0 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Bad Checks 1 0 T 01 o Expected
Disorderly 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Drunk Driving 7 ) C 1-13 8 Expected
Drunkenness 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Family Offenses 0 ) T 0—1 o Expected
Liquor Laws 2 ) C 0-5 o Expected
Trespassing 1 0 C 0—2 2 Expected
Violent Total o C 11-15 Expected
Property Total T 52-116 Expected
Total @ 109-143 Expected

Thefts from vehicles and other thefts

Since MGM Springfield opened, Longmeadow has seen an increase in thefts from vehicles from residential
driveways, plus miscellaneous residential thefts (the data is unclear, but | suspect sheds, yards, open garages,
anything short of a burglary), mostly but not universally at night, targeting primarily wallets and purses with cash
and credit cards, although there’s a high “other” total in the property type data. Among the incidents are several
one-night sprees in which multiple residences are hit on the same evening.

The two crimes together amount to about 35 cases in the last four months of 2018, accounting for most of the
increase in these two crime categories. The incidents are concentrated on the north side of town near the
Springfield border, and the agency shares this pattern with East Longmeadow and Springfield itself.

This pattern is not new to the agency: the northern third of the town has consistently reported z0-70 such
residential thefts per year. But the crime had been decreasing steadily, and 2018 brought a reversal and
intensification of this longstanding issue. While we do not yet have confirmation that any specific offender was
motivated by a desire for gambling funds, the totality of the circumstantial evidence (multiple agencies involved,
clear spatial relationship to the casino, a logical connection to the crime) makes me think that the pattern has, at
least in part, a likely MGM Springfield relationship.

51



Selected calls for service reported to Longmeadow, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Disabled Vehicle 39 -2 T 16—43 29  Expected
Disturbance YA -1 C 30-58 34 Expected
Domestic Dispute 23 0 C 18-28 20 Expected
General Service 285 6 T 263-370 240 Low
Medical 357 T 325-436 420  Expected
Suspicious Activity 181 -11 T 82—194 144  Expected
Traffic Collision 139 1 C 124154 162 High
Traffic Complaint 52 0 C 43-61 62 High

Traffic collisions

The numbers show an odd phenomenon in Longmeadow: it appears that the agency must take a full collision report
on all of its collisions rather than just the injury collisions and high-dollar-value collisions that the state mandates.
For this reason, calls for service for collisions do not have to be analyzed separately from collision reports. See below
for a description of the latter.

Traffic complaints

Longmeadow showed a slightly high value for erratic, improper, and annoying driving and parking behaviors, but
with no particular geographic or temporal concentration. As noted in several of the other communities’ profiles,
this is a call type that almost inevitably increases with extra trafficin a community.

Collisions reported to Longmeadow, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 85 2 T 76—108 104  Expected
Parked vehicle 28 -1 T 13—32 30 Expected
Pedestrian ) C 0—2 o Expected
Bicyclist 1 ) C 0-2 o Expected
Animal 9 1 T 5—24 10 Expected
Fixed object 9 ) C 414 8 Expected
Curb/barrier 3 o) T 0—4 7 High
Rollover/Jackknife ) 0 C 0-0 1 High
Other/Unknown 3 o T 0—4 1 Expected
Total 138 1 C 125-151 161 High

Longmeadow showed higher-than-normal collision volume during this period, although no particular category
dominated the increase. Laurel Street at Bliss Road and Converse Streets saw an increase, as did Dwight Road
between Converse and Williams, both of which could logically be connected with more local traffic going to MGM,
but a lack of similar increases along the same routes puts the ultimate conclusion in doubt.

52



4-month comparison: Ludlow

LUDLOW

Population (est. 2016): 21,484
Area: 28.2 square miles

Police officers: 38

City center distance from MGM:
9.55 miles

A largely residential community, Ludlow showed no increases in crime along the travel routes to MGM that we
hypothesized might see greater activity. Nor did it see any changes in traffic collisions. It did, however, see a near-
immediate increase in domestic violence (simple assaults) and domestic disputes, a trend that also affected several
other communities in this study. It is too soon to say whether this trend is related to MGM Springfield: answering
that question will have to involve a more thorough analysis of the full reports.

Crimes reported to Ludlow, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder ) C 0-0 o Expected
Sexual Assault 2 C 0—4 o Expected
Kidnapping 0 0 C 0—0 2 High
Robbery 2 -1 T 0—4 o Expected
Aggravated Assault 8 T 11-19 16  Expected
Simple Assault 23 C 14—-32 47 High
Threats 13 -1 C 6—20 14  Expected
Arson 0 0 C 0—1 1 Expected
Burglary 28 -1 C 14—42 14  Expected
Theft from Persons ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Purse-Snatching 0 T 0—2 o Expected
Shoplifting 10 ) C 3-17 12 Expected
Theft from Building 16 ) C 12-20 3 Low
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected

53



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Theft from Vehicle 12 1 C 3—21 11 Expected
Theft of MV Parts ) ) T 0—2 1 Expected
Other Theft YA -2 T 2348 36 Expected
Auto Theft 1 C 2-14 2 Expected
Forgery 0 C 2-8 2 Expected
Fraud/Con Games 10 1 T 7-23 13  Expected
Credit Card Fraud 4 1 T 0-14 o Expected
Identity Theft 9 1 T 4—23 7  Expected
Employee Theft 1 0 T 1-5 0 Low

Extortion 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Stolen Property 3 ) C 0-6 3  Expected
Vandalism 47 -3 T 2744 41 Expected
Drugs 12 1 T 8-24 13  Expected
Statutory Rape 0 0 C 0-1 o Expected
Pornography ) ) C 0—1 1 Expected
Prostitution 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Weapons 3 1 T 2-8 8 Expected
Bad Checks 2 ) C 1-3 ) Low

Disorderly 7 ) C 4—10 2 Low

Drunk Driving 13 1 T 8—25 16  Expected
Drunkenness 4 -1 T 0-6 2 Expected
Family Offenses 0 0 C 0-0 o Expected
Liquor Laws 5 1 T 4—12 6  Expected
Trespassing 0 C 1-7 Expected
Violent Total 2 C 36-62 High

Property Total o C 177-219 Low

Total 10 @ 251-347 Expected

Kidnapping

Ludlow Police recorded two kidnapping incidents in the fall of 2018, the first reported by the agency since 2013. The
first lists a 17-year-old female from Belchertown as the victim, with no offender, and a weapon of "Drugs.” The
second indicates that a 26-year-old man from Ludlow kidnapped a 26-year-old woman from Springfield. There is
otherwise insufficient data to determine the nature of the incidents without a narrative review.

Simple assault

Ludlow is one of several communities in the area to see a significant increase in domestic simple assaults (assaults
without dangerous weapons and without serious injury) in the final four months of the year, coinciding with the
opening of MGM Springfield. The events are spread out over the town and show no particular geographic or
temporal concentrations. As with the other communities, a full review of narratives will be necessary to fully
understand this trend.

54



Selected calls for service reported to Ludlow, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 3 ) C 03 9 High
Disabled Vehicle 53 -1 C 44—62 57 Expected
Disturbance 303 -19 T 164302 194 Expected
Domestic Dispute 54 -1 C L4—64 78 High
General Service 307 7 T 256—406 361  Expected
Medical 546 24 T 627-675 573 Low
Psychological 2 0 C 0—4 2 Expected
Suspicious Activity 187 14 T 180319 197 Expected
Traffic Collision 195 T 176257 202  Expected
Traffic Complaint 29 T 26—36 51 High
Vagrancy 1 0 T 1-2 0 Low

Abandoned vehicles

The total isn't particularly high compared to other communities, but the g “abandoned vehicle” incidents reported
by Ludlow in the last four months of 2018 are high for this community. The incidents are split between November
and December, but other than a pair of them at 12 Center Street 12 days apart in December, there’s no geographic
concentration. Nothing else can be determined from available data. A lack of similar incidents in other communities
makes an MGM connection unlikely.

Domestic disputes
Ludlow’s increase in domestic dispute calls for service during this period mirrors its increase in domestic-related
simple assaults. As with the assaults, this is a trend that did not begin until after September, although it’s hard to

see why such an immediate increase would be tied to the casino. A review of CAD narratives might supply more
clues as to the nature of this trend.

Traffic complaints

Complaints of “erratic operation” increased in Ludlow during this period, primarily on Center Street (Route 21),
concentrated in the evenings between 16:00 and 23:00.

Collisions reported to Ludlow, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 116 8 T 113-186 123  Expected
Parked vehicle 27 1 C 19-35 32 Expected
Pedestrian 3 -1 T 0-6 1 Expected
Bicyclist 1 ) C 0-2 2 Expected
Animal 4 1 T 3-11 4 Expected
Fixed object 21 2 T 1736 25 Expected
Curb/barrier 10 ) T 8-17 13  Expected

55



Category Slope Window Pred. Actual

Type Window 2018
Rollover/Jackknife 2 o C 1-3 3  Expected
Other/Unknown 11 -1 T 2-13 11 Expected
Total 195 10 T 189-284 214 Expected

Ludlow’s traffic collisions increased steadily from 2010 to 2017, so it was nice to see that 2018 reversed rather than

continue the trend. No category outperformed its expected window for this period.

56




4-month comparison: Northampton

Easthampton

Population (est. 2016): 28,549

Area: 35.8 square miles

Police officers: 63

City center distance from MGM:

16.70 miles

The farthest community from MGM in this study, if Northampton was likely to have an increase in crimes or calls
because of MGM, it would most likely be reflected in its few hotels, services near its highway exits, and perhaps a
general increase in the population visiting its arts community. So far, it does not appear that these trends have
occurred. Violent crime and total crime were low for the agency during the last four months of 2018, and only a
couple of crimes and call-for-service categories showed significant increases. The agency will want to monitor and

analyze its bad/forged check situation, discussed below.

Crimes reported to Northampton, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Sexual Assault 14 1 T 11-29 14  Expected
Kidnapping 2 0 C 0-5 o Expected
Robbery 5 ) C 2-8 3  Expected
Aggravated Assault 29 2 T 33—48 27 Low
Simple Assault 99 -2 C 86-112 75 Low
Threats 23 -2 T 7-27 13  Expected
Arson 1 0 C 0—2 o Expected
Burglary 42 -7 T 034 28  Expected
Theft from Persons 0 C 0—2 Expected
Purse-Snatching C 0-1 1 Expected
Shoplifting 46 T 35-87 52  Expected

57



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Theft from Building 78 -6 T 41-66 42 Expected
Theft from Machine ) ) T 0—1 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle 27 -2 T 0—43 9 Expected
Theft of MV Parts 9 -2 T 0-10 6  Expected
Other Theft 42 -1 C 33-51 30 Low

Auto Theft 8 -2 T 0-10 8 Expected
Forgery 9 -1 T 0—10 13 High

Fraud/Con Games 17 T 15—29 20 Expected
Credit Card Fraud 6 C 1-11 4  Expected
Identity Theft 14 -1 C 8-20 6 Low

Employee Theft T 0—2 o Expected
Extortion T 0—1 1 Expected
Stolen Property 5 ) C 2-8 4  Expected
Vandalism 74 -6 T 2573 47  Expected
Drugs 33 -3 C 14-52 17  Expected
Statutory Rape 2 0 T 1-5 3  Expected
Pornography 2 0 T 1-5 2 Expected
Prostitution 0 0 C 01 o Expected
Weapons 4 0 C 0-8 2 Expected
Bad Checks 2 ) C 0—4 6 High

Disorderly 23 -1 C 16—30 13 Low

Drunk Driving 41 3 T 25-88 27  Expected
Drunkenness 55 -8 T 0-56 28  Expected
Family Offenses ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Liquor Laws 14 -1 T 1-17 8 Expected
Trespassing 14 -1 C 7—21 18  Expected
Violent Total @ 153-193 132 Low

Property Total T 234-338 271 Expected
Total T 567-746 527 Low

Forgery and bad checks

The two incident types to increase in Northampton are likely related, as the offense code for most of the “forgery”
incidents is “forgery of check.” Technically, forgery means the check was always counterfeit, while bad checks are
written on accounts with insufficient funds. In practice, the categories are often conflated, and either way,
Northampton saw a decade high in both crimes during this period.

The incidents seem to involve different suspects. Among them, six individuals, all but one female, all from the
surrounding area, are identified as offenders within the data. CVS Pharmacies show up in three incidents, but
otherwise the incidents are scattered. The nature of the incidents suggests the use of the checks to pay for services
rather than obtain cash, lessening the likelihood of a casino relationship, but the crime otherwise has a logical
connection to a casino and should thus be monitored.

58



Selected calls for service reported to Northampton, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 7 -1 T 0-10 3 Expected
Disabled Vehicle 99 A T 57—-100 109 High
Disorderly 567 ) C 498-636 451 Low
General Service 285 C 256-314 322 High
liquor 112 -1 C 83-141 77 Low
Lost Property 154 2 C 126-182 127  Expected
Medical 528 27 T 539752 574  Expected
Overdose 7 3 T 12-24 13 Expected
Psychological 56 -20 T 0-75 3  Expected
Suspicious Activity 714 -68 T 243-624 509 Expected
Traffic Collision 462 2 C 411-513 479  Expected
Traffic Complaint 308 -4 C 265—351 272 Expected
Vagrancy 11 2 T 9-29 4 Low

Disabled vehicles

Disabled vehicles had been on a slight decrease in Northampton during the last decade, but 2018 abruptly reversed
the trend and delivered the highest total since 2011. With no geographic or temporal concentration, it's hard to
identify a cause for this one, but with no comparable increase in other vehicle-related calls-for-service and no
complementary increase in other communities, a relationship to MGM seems unlikely.

General service

The small increase in this category seems to be related to ride-alongs, which the agency did not track as a
subcategory until 2017. There was also increase in calls coded “Assist/service calls,” with repeat calls to a few
residential addresses accounting for the increase. There doesn’t seem to be any MGM nexus with this one.

Collisions reported to Northampton, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 146 -3 C 120-172 130 Expected
Parked vehicle 19 -2 T 0-19 18  Expected
Pedestrian 7 o T 0-10 3  Expected
Bicyclist 5 ) C 3-7 3 Expected
Animal 8 1 T 3-15 19 High

Fixed object 15 ) C 8—22 11 Expected
Curb/barrier 9 0 C 414 5  Expected
Rollover/Jackknife 0 C 0—2 2 Expected
Other/Unknown 0 C 37 8 High

Total 215 -5 T 149-240 199 Expected

The only cogent category to see an increase in traffic collisions in Northampton was animal-related crashes, which
showed no spatial or temporal concentration. Overall crashes remained nominal in the city.

59



4-month comparison: West Springfield

| \ T

Population (est. 2016): 28,529

s Area: 17.5 square miles
Police officers: 84

City center distance from MGM:
3.83 miles

With a large hotel cluster directly across the river from MGM Springfield, it seemed inevitable that West Springfield
would see an increase in activity at hotels specifically. Four months later, the hotels may have more patrons, but
their presence isn't being reflected in any additional crime. Hotel crime in the city is down from 2016 and 2017, and
about average for the last 7 years.

However, there are several signs that West Springfield is seeing extra activity post-MGM, some of which may be
related to the casino. First, although violent, property, and total crimes were within expected ranges for the city,
among the individual categories are found more increases than any other reporting agency. A pattern of purse
snatching could plausibly be related to MGM. So far, West Springfield is the only city or town with a confirmed
increase in activity at service locations like gas stations and convenience stores—in this case increased disturbance
and suspicious activity calls along two commercial areas near Springfield bridges. Finally, traffic collisions and traffic
complaints have both significantly increased in the city, and in a manner that provides a spatial connection to MGM.

Crimes reported to West Springfield, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Murder ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Sexual Assault 10 T 6-19 14  Expected
Kidnapping 2 ) C 0—4 1 Expected
Robbery 12 -1 C 6—18 7  Expected
Aggravated Assault 37 1 C 29-45 34 Expected
Simple Assault 80 -8 T 38-61 67 High
Threats 27 -3 T 5—26 23  Expected

60



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Arson 2 ) C 0-5 2 Expected
Burglary 74 -6 T 14-85 54  Expected
Theft from Persons 2 ) C 0—4 2 Expected
Purse-Snatching 3 T 0-5 6 High

Shoplifting 108 8 T 91-191 117  Expected
Theft from Building 51 -1 C 37-65 37 Expected
Theft from Machine ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle 50 -3 C 2476 41 Expected
Theft of MV Parts 1 0 T 01 1 Expected
Other Theft 181 -7 T 94—214 133 Expected
Auto Theft 28 -3 T 0-33 22 Expected
Forgery 11 -1 T 5-14 4 Low

Fraud/Con Games 26 ) C 18-34 YA High

Credit Card Fraud 5 ) C 2-8 2 Expected
Identity Theft 16 ) C 11-21 23 High

Employee Theft 1 T 3-11 2 Low

Extortion 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Stolen Property 12 -1 T 0—-14 15 High

Vandalism 124 -10 T 52—112 99 Expected
Drugs 36 A T 0—42 38  Expected
Statutory Rape 0 C 13 2 Expected
Pornography 1 0 C 0—2 3 High

Prostitution 1 0 C 0—2 o Expected
Weapons A o} C 1-7 4  Expected
Bad Checks 3 -1 T 0—2 1 Expected
Disorderly 14 -1 C 8-—20 11 Expected
Drunk Driving 10 -1 T 0-15 4  Expected
Drunkenness 1 -1 T 0—2 o Expected
Family Offenses 1 ) T 0—2 1 Expected
Liquor Laws 3 -1 T 0—4 1 Expected
Trespassing T 7  Expected
Violent Total T 6 Expected
Property Total T Expected
Total T Expected

Simple assault

West Springfield joins many area communities in reporting an increase in simple assaults, although in West
Springfield’s case, it's more of a lack of an expected decrease; the crime declined steadily between 2010 (115) and
its decade low in 2017 (57), and the predictive statistics assumed the trend would continue. The final number is not
terribly high given the historic data. Moreover, West Springfield’s increase does not indicate domestic assault like
it does in some of the other communities. Most of the charges are non-domestic. Unfortunately, nothing can be
told about the crime based on location type as the agency overuses the “other/unknown” category.

61



Purse snatching

West Springfield saw a pattern of purse snatchings along Riverdale Street between September and December of
2018, most in the evenings between 16:00 and 22:00. Incidents are listed at places like Panera Bread, the Super 8
Motel, Pride Gas, and KFC. Four of the victims were women over the age of 60, and most were from the local area.
Police made arrests or charges in three of the cases, all of which involved different offenders. The crime has a logical
and spatial relationship to the presence of MGM and could easily be related to the casino on either the victim or

offenders’ sides.

5 N <
Fj = = &
% & & § L
Y & 2
3 = 1500 RIVERDALE ST \eu«ﬂ‘d 2 ey
3 g ® net, &S L8
) e Z
] B 3 =
BrshHillave |2 & = o, g,
Fsige) 5 &
=
& C
il
_ o et (\\3{’
=
w
@ ac?
Z 1247 RIVERDALE ST 7 e-;
R ¢ W\
¢
[ & ) T
L) (e
< = &’%
Gao’
Soey o
Eorn'srw,f CHICOPEE
w*"";
WEST SPRINGHELD 51 k]
*
=
3 £ & @
S = P a T
El = £ £
£ oz ¢ ! 2 8
i = Ef Hron 5 =
< £
Z
o By, 119 DAGGETTDR
m% o b o .
S _ Oacﬁé
O
|
3
5]
Y
&
00,; 931 RIVERDALE 35 RIVERDALE ST
. e @
I i
- o
ummnghr s E 5 3
& Mo, -5
N= Nerey . @g %
= z w

3

Figure 11: Locations of a pattern of purse snatchings in West Springfield in the fall of 2018.

Fraud/con games

Very high totals for this category in West Springfield were subjected to a more thorough review of individual cases
with the West Springfield Police. The analysis showed that about one-third of the cases were mis-coded credit card
frauds and the rest were an odd miscellany of swindles that showed no particular patterns. There is a potential
logical tie between this type of crime and a casino, although no other agency reported a similar increase during this
period. In the next report, we will review a larger number of samples from different agencies.

Identity theft

Identity theft has been increasing all over Massachusetts for several years, but the Springfield area has proven
mostly immune to that trend. West Springfield is an exception, reporting a 9-year high (for September-December)
in 2018. The crime is a complex one, and little can be determined without reading the full narrative. That over 50%

62



happened at residences and another 25% happened at “unknown” location types suggests that most of the
incidents are online or out-of-town frauds being reported by West Springfield residents.

Pornography

Three incidents include a September arrest of a West Springfield man for child pornography and incidents in
October or November apparently involving teenagers with images of themselves or underaged schoolmates.
There's no reason to suspect an MGM influence in any of the cases.

Selected calls for service reported to West Springfield, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018
Disturbance 660 A T 341-602 601  Expected
Domestic Dispute 114 18 T 120-253 188  Expected
General Service 280 -30 T 25-278 225  Expected
Suspicious Activity 422 -1 C 388-456 472 High
Traffic Collision 615 -6 C 535-695 696 High
Traffic Complaint 273 7 C 221-326 346 High
Disturbances

Disturbance calls are technically within their predicted range, but only just so, and | wanted to make sure there
weren’t any major patterns—such as hotel responses—reflected in the increase. The call volume isn’t very high
compared to past years (it started at a peak of 897in 2010), but the 2018 total did reverse a trend of steady decreases
over the years.

One trend, likely related to MGM, became apparent: an increase in disturbance calls on Park Street, just over the
bridge and off the rotary from Springfield. Small but significant increases in calls were seen at a Cumberland Farms,
a Dunkin’ Donuts, Rotary Liquors, and Mamma Mia’s Pizza, likely suggesting an increase in customers stopping on
their way out of the casino. There have also been reports of panhandling in this area.

Suspicious Activity

Park Street also held about 33% of the increase in suspicious activity calls; the rest can be attributed to Memorial
Avenue. Both streets are right across bridges from Springfield and could easily be affected by extra traffic from the
casino. The specific nature of the calls is unknown (they may be related to the aforementioned panhandlers), but
this is the type of call that tends to go up when traffic in an area increases.

Traffic Collisions

Unlike most of the agencies in the area, West Springfield’s collisions were relatively static between 2010 and 2017.
Then, in the last four months of 2018, calls for service for collisions increased about 13% from the average, and
reported collisions (the table below) increased 21%. The increase in calls (which include nonreportable collisions
like fender-benders with no injury and low property damage value) is highest on Memorial Avenue, Main Street,
Park Street, and Westfield Street from September through November, heaviest in the afternoon and evenings
between 13:00 and 20:00, no particular days of the week. All of these streets are near the Springfield border and
funnel traffic to the Memorial Bridge. It is entirely possible that they are experiencing higher traffic headed to the
casino and thus more collisions.

63



Traffic Complaints

Yet another category that tends to increase with volume of traffic, traffic complaints hit a 9-year high in West
Springfield in 2018. Riverdale Street (Route 5) has the largest part of the increase; the rest is found on Westfield
Street (Route 187). The nature of the calls is not part of the CAD dataset, but the increase has been most notable
between 14:00 and 22:00.

\

Dlsturbances and Suspicious Activity Calls in West Springfield
September-December 2018

Figure 12: Disturbances and Suspicious activity calls in West Springfield post-MGM show hot spots running through commercial
areas that lead to Springfield bridges.

Collisions reported to West Springfield, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 189 -2 C 161-217 232 High

Parked vehicle 22 1 C 14-30 36 High

Pedestrian 9 ) C 5—13 12 Expected

Bicyclist ) C 1-5 1 Expected

Animal 2 o C 0—4 4  Expected

64



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018
Fixed object 18 -1 C 1323 20 Expected
Curb/barrier 17 ) C 13-21 12 Low
Rollover/Jackknife 1 C 0—1 o Expected
Other/Unknown 7 C 3-11 8 Expected
Total 268 -3 C 233-303 325 High

West Springfield reported high traffic collision totals in 2018, and like the calls for service, much of the increase is
on the east side of the city where it could be influenced by MGM. Riverdale Street and Memorial Avenue bear the
brunt of the increase. Both pass through heavily-trafficked shopping areas and feed into direct routes to MGM.

65



4-month comparison: Wilbraham

Population (est. 2016): 14,684
Area: 22.4 square miles
Police officers: 27

City center distance from MGM:
8.36 miles

Wilbraham is physically close to Springfield but lacks significant travel routes to and from MGM Springfield. There
is no evidence of an increase in retail crimes along Route 20, which was our primary concern at the outset. Instead,
the agency experienced total crime and property crime within expected parameters, but an increase in domestic-
related simple assaults drove up violent crime during this period. For calls for service, only hunting-related calls and
general service calls increased, neither with a logical casino nexus. Crashes were close to average volumes.

Crimes reported to Wilbraham, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual
Type Window 2018

Result

Murder ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Sexual Assault 2 o C 0—4 3  Expected
Kidnapping ) 0 C 0—-1 o Expected
Robbery 1 ) C 0-2 1 Expected
Aggravated Assault 4 ) C 1-7 4  Expected
Simple Assault 16 ) C 13-19 22 High

Threats 14 -1 T 5—16 17 High

Arson 0 0 C 01 o Expected
Burglary 15 -2 T 0—22 6  Expected
Theft from Persons ) ) T 0—1 o Expected
Purse-Snatching C 0—0 o Expected
Shoplifting 13 C 6-20 25 High

Theft from Building 6 -1 C 0-14 3 Expected

66



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Theft from Machine ) ) C 0-0 o Expected
Theft from Vehicle 13 -3 T 0-22 5  Expected
Theft of MV Parts ) ) C 0—1 o Expected
Other Theft 29 A T 126 16  Expected
Auto Theft 5 -1 C 0-11 1 Expected
Forgery 3 0 T 0—3 1 Expected
Fraud/Con Games 5 ) C 2-8 6  Expected
Credit Card Fraud 2 0 C 0-5 2 Expected
Identity Theft 3 0 T 2—7 3  Expected
Employee Theft 1 ) C 0—2 o Expected
Extortion 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Stolen Property 2 ) C 0—4 2 Expected
Vandalism 22 -2 T 0—27 20 Expected
Drugs 16 0 C 0-32 6  Expected
Statutory Rape 2 0 C 0—4 o Expected
Pornography 0 0 C 0—1 o Expected
Prostitution 0 0 C 0—0 o Expected
Weapons 2 0 C 0-5 1 Expected
Bad Checks 1 ) C 0—2 1 Expected
Disorderly 4 ) C 2-6 2 Expected
Drunk Driving 19 1 C 10—28 16  Expected
Drunkenness 4 ) C 17 6  Expected
Family Offenses ) ) C 0—0 o Expected
Liquor Laws 6 1 T 2—20 5  Expected
Trespassing 0 T 1-8 4  Expected
Violent Total C High

Property Total T Expected
Total T Expected

Simple assaults and threats

The increases in both of these crimes are clearly explained by higher-than average domestic violence totals for
Wilbraham in the last four months of 2018, with 77% of assaults occurring at residences and 68% showing a charge
code that indicates domestic violence. The increase in threats is related to the violations of abuse prevention orders,
many of them issued after previous acts of violence (the agency does not seem to use the goF “family offenses”
code in such situations). An MGM relationship is unlikely. Although there are complex social mechanisms by which
a casino can lead to an increase in domestic violence, it would be rare to be so sudden and localized. Assaults were
high for the entire year, and not just during the four post-casino months.

Shoplifting
The increase is localized entirely at the Home Depot, which reported between 2 and 10 shopliftings per year

between 2010 and 2016 but shot up to 19 in 2017 and 29 in 2018. The increase could reflect an increase in actual

67



shoplifting at the store, but its suddenness—and a lack of complementary increases in other stores in the region—
suggests that a change in security policy or practice is more likely to credit.

Selected calls for service reported to Wilbraham, 1 September-31 December
Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 2 ) C 0—4 1 Expected
Disabled Vehicle 58 3 T 43-97 76  Expected
Disorderly 41 1 C 31-51 44, Expected
Domestic Dispute 49 4 T 56—79 57  Expected
General Service 198 3 C 171-225 229 High

Gunshots 8 1 T 9—22 6 Low

Hunting 3 ) C 0-6 8 High

Lost Property 15 0 T 14—21 17  Expected
Medical 296 13 T 233-456 364  Expected
Psychological 13 1 T 12-22 21 Expected
Suspicious Activity 305 2 C 232—378 262  Expected
Traffic Collision 139 o) C 114164 147 Expected
Traffic Complaint 70 5 T 62-111 96  Expected

General Service

An increase in calls for general police services—escorts, lockouts, information and directions, and so forth—might
accompany an increase in visitors to the area, but in Wilbraham'’s case the higher statistics seem to be related to a
bump in car seat inspections, which would focus primarily on residents and thus not have a casino nexus.

Hunting

Wilbraham, Agawam, and Hampden are the only three agencies to track hunting complaints. Both Wilbraham and
Hampden showed an increase in calls, but not in any way that shares their geography. Incidents in both agencies
were heavily concentrated in the 20—29 December period and Wilbraham had three on Saturday, 15 December. The
CAD data offers no additional information on the events.

Collisions reported to Wilbraham, 1 September-31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Vehicle in traffic 67 ) C 54—80 73 Expected
Parked vehicle 11 ) C 5—17 10 Expected
Pedestrian 1 ) T 0—2 o Expected
Bicyclist ) T 0—3 1 Expected
Animal 13 2 T 7-32 16  Expected
Fixed object 15 1 C 10-20 16  Expected
Curb/barrier 7 -1 T 0-12 4  Expected
Rollover/Jackknife ) ) C 0—1 o Expected

68



Category Pre-MGM  Slope Window Pred. Actual Result

Avg Type Window 2018
Other/Unknown 4 -1 T 0-5 7 High
Total 120 1 C 98-142 127 Expected

Total collisions were in the normal range in Wilbraham, with the exception of the “other/unknown” category, whose
very name makes it difficult to analyze what might be happening with the (small) increase.

69



4-month comparison: State Police

NORTHAMPTON

.,_291l
enoins FIELD

MG Springfield

SPR

WILBRAHAM

\w HAMPDEN

Figure 13: A network of State Police-patrolled highways and routes feeds the MGM Springfield area.

State Police patrol state highways (principally I-9o, 1-91, I-291, and I-391) in the Springfield area, plus state
properties and parks. They assist local police in response to some crime issues, and in particular have a longstanding
partnership with the Springfield Police to patrol hot spots and reduce street violence and gang activity. In 2018, The
State Police Gaming Enforcement Unit took over primary enforcement responsibilities at MGM Springfield.

70



The Massachusetts State Police operate a records system with different conventions and reporting rules than the
local agencies, so the categories and totals are not directly compatible. In some cases, where both agencies
responded to an incident, the two systems may duplicate each other. The data below comes from a combination of
multiple State Police stations, including B-3 (Springfield), B-6 (Northampton), several sections of Troop E
eliminated and re-allocated in 2018, and various mobile statewide units such as headquarters units, canine units,
and investigators. As with the local agencies, it excludes at MGM specifically, as those were covered in a previous
section of the report.

Incidents reported to the State Police in the MGM area, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

Abandoned Vehicle 6 1 T 414 14  Expected
Assault 4 ) T 3-7 6  Expected
Building Check 1267 158 T 1114—2730 1717  Expected
Disabled Vehicle 871 -23 T 529-980 992 High
Disturbances 12 ) C 6—18 19 High
Domestic Dispute 5 0 C 3—7 7  Expected
Drugs 18 -2 T 0—31 30 Expected
General Service 45 -5 C 7-83 46  Expected
Gunshots 13 3 T 8-37 40 High
Lost Property 10 -1 T 0-13 13 Expected
Medical 32 T 21-58 39 Expected
Psychological 3 ) C 1-5 1 Expected
Robbery 4 C 1-7 2 Expected
Suspicious Activity 14 T 1424 11 Low
Traffic Collision 744 24 T 710—-991 770  Expected
Traffic Complaint 227 -10 T 127-238 232  Expected
Trespassing 6 0 C 2-10 2 Expected

Disabled vehicles
A record-high number of disabled motorists were seen principally on the Massachusetts Turnpike (Route 90) and

Route 91. It's not impossible that these motorist-assist calls reflect extra traffic coming to the area for MGM, but if
so, itisn't reflected in other vehicle-related call types.

Disturbances

A miscellany of incidents primarily in Springfield, Holyoke, and Chicopee. There are no commonalities among the
incidents and no clear explanation for the increase.

Gunshots

As part of its partnership with the Springfield Police Department, the State Police respond to gun-related violence
within the city. Most of the calls seen here, then, are duplicating those seen in the Springfield Police Department'’s
statistics, and as there, the increase seems to be related to a wider implementation of the ShotSpotter detection
system rather than a real increase in the number of shots fired in the city.

71



Crashes on state roadways, 1 September—31 December

Category Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg Type Window 2018

I-90 105 1 C 88-122 107 Expected
l-91 380 19 T 367-561 395 Expected
I-291 82 1 C 63—-101 88  Expected
I-391 55 1 T 52—67 62  Expected
Hwy 5 40 2 C 22-58 36  Expected
Hwy 57 24 1 T 22-39 27  Expected

Crashes on all state roadways were within expected ranges, suggesting that the highways were able to effectively
absorb the extra traffic heading to MGM.

72



Before-and-after comparison of other variables

The statistics in this section help bolster our understanding of trends in the Springfield area since MGM
Springfield opened. It is possible that total volume of particular crimes and calls for service didn't
increase, but shifts in other variables happened beneath the surface. For those categories that did
increase, analysis of these variables can help us understand and explain those increases.

Individuals arrested

Whatever changes happened with crime in the communities, arrests remained essentially at expected
values for all agencies except East Longmeadow and Hampden, where they decreased. These figures do
not include the 115 people arrested at MGM Springfield specifically by the State Police, but even if we
added them to Springfield’s total, the agency would still be within its expected window (albeit at the high
end of it).

Individuals arrested, 1 September-31 December, region5

Pre-MGM Slope Window Pred. Actual Result
Avg. Type Window 2018

Agawam 161 8 T 144—234 224 Expected
Chicopee 354 -17 T 214346 319 Expected
East Longmeadow 84 14 T 94—211 53 Low
Hampden 41 -3 T 20—45 19 Low
Holyoke 915 -53 T 608-815 639 Expected
Longmeadow 27 -1 C 15-39 19 Expected
Ludlow 176 13 T 197267 206 Expected
Northampton 311 -15 T 190-319 214 Expected
Springfield 1523 -38 T 1035-1663 1555  Expected
Wilbraham 193 14 T 158-350 198 Expected
West Springfield 228 -5 T 168-251 211 Expected
Total 4013 -83 T 3386-3987 3657 Expected

The only crimes to see a significant increase in arrests among the participating communities were non-
felony assaults (in keeping with the overall crime statistics above), thefts from persons, pornography,
and weapons violations.

Location type

Prior to the opening of MGM Springfield, one common hypothesis is that it would increase activity at the
types of places that cater to visitors, such as hotels, gas stations, convenience stores, and transportation
hubs. This is not necessarily because we expected that the visiting population would be composed of
criminals or uniquely problematic. It was a simple recognition that every time you increase the number
of people at a location, crimes tend to increase as well.

5 Excludes Chicopee

73



By and large, this has not happened in the first four months. Analysis of increases on the preceding pages
showed few that were concentrated on specific types of locations. Statistics by type of location below
show that convenience stores, gas stations, banks, and most retail establishments were well within the
predicted window. Hotel crime actually fell considerably.

The only location type to see an appreciable increase was transportation stations (“air/bus/train
terminal”), increasing 62% from its average and reversing a slight decreasing trend. A full 70% of this
volume comes from a single location: Union Station in Springfield. This location saw increases in thefts,
fights, and disorderly conduct. As this increase did not start until August, there is a reasonable chance of
an MGM connection. We are reaching out to the Amtrak Police to try to get a complete picture of the
increases at this location specifically.

Crimes by location type, 1 September-31 December
Category Slope Window Pred. Actual

Type Window 2018
Air/Bus/Train Terminal 45 -2 T 7-55 74 High
Bank 121 -5 T 74—132 95 Expected
Bar 190 -23 T 55—141 99 Expected
Church 69 -5 T 17-84 53 Expected
Construction Site 29 -2 T 0—42 18 Expected
Convenience Store 311 -6 T 221-351 272  Expected
Department Store/Mall 611 -22 T 405-658 458  Expected
Drug/Doctor/Hospital 247 A C 219-275 214 Low
Field/Woods/Park 160 -7 T 106-162 101 Low
Gas Station 177 1 C 144210 186  Expected
Government/Public 569 0 C 526—612 535 Expected
Grocery 228 C 208-248 174 Low
Hotel 170 -1 C 121219 118 Low
Jail 13 2 T 12-30 10 Low
Lake/Waterway 8 -2 T 0—7 8 High
Liquor Store 57 0 C 47-67 J¥A Low
Office 554 -22 T 347-587 445  Expected
Other/Unknown 2294 139 T 2423-3102 3539 High
Parking Lot/Garage 724 -69 T 271-643 363 Expected
Rental Storage 37 0 C 25-49 24 Low
Residence 9229 -341 T 7424-8177 8378 High
Restaurant 340 -3 C 302—378 299 Low
School 737 -106 T 213—400 349 Expected
Specialty Store 27 5 T 9-64 41 Expected
Street 292 -1 C 262-322 247 Low

Residents, where crimes had been declining steeply for 10 years, saw a sudden flattening of that trend,
and thus a higher-than-expected total for 2018. The largest categories to increase at residences were
aggravated and simple assaults, fraud, weapons violations, and the useless “all other” category. Incidents
at “other/unknown” locations also saw a steep increase during the period, and we would remind

74



participating agencies that more accurate coding in this category can better help identify patterns and
trends.

We will continue to monitor other locations and location types to see if trends change.

75



Geographic analysis

The preceding sections of this report have presented statistics for the 11 participating communities as a whole. For
the most part, they have noted few increases in crime. But it's worth ensuring that some smaller trends aren’t being
overlooked in amidst the large volume of crime and calls for service reported at the agency level.

Future reports will look at three specific geographies:

e  The Springfield neighborhoods immediately adjacent to the casino
e  Sub-geographies of other communities with a focus on travel routes to and from MGM Springfield

e Radiuses around highway exits in surrounding communities, where travelers to and from MGM Springfield
might be expected to visit for lodging and services

With only four months of data, however, statistics are too small to show any meaningful trends in small subdivisions
of these communities. For this report, covering just four months, we will focus on the area immediately adjacent to
the casino.

Metro Center Springfield

MGM Springfield’s official address is 1 MGM Way, a street built specifically for the casino. It occupies about half a
block bordered by Union Street, Main Street, State Street, and East Columbus Avenue, its construction having
obliterated the middle section of Howard Street, which became a couple of driveways on either side of the building.
It is at the southeast end of a busy, downtown Metro Center with dozens of businesses, shops, restaurants, and
hotels. Its close neighbors include the Springfield District Court, Symphony Hall, the MassMutual Center, Tower
Square, the UMass Center at Springfield, and the CityStage performing arts center, and it's a good bet that all of
these businesses stand to do more business with MGM bookending their block. Metro Center ends at roughly Union
Station to the northwest, just before Route 291 serves as a natural hard boundary to the neighborhood.

An elevated Route g1 runs to the southwest of MGM and the Metro Center area. On the other side is Riverfront Park
and a variety of businesses and attractions along Hall of Fame Avenue, including the Naismith Memorial Basketball
Hall of Fame. The Connecticut River serves as a hard boundary to the southwest. Northeast and southeast of the
Metro Center, mixed business and residential areas sprawl for miles.

Into this area, we have introduced over 1.5 million people in a four-month period. These visitors, their cars, their
wallets and purses, their trusting natures, are all potential targets for thieves, robbers, con artists, and more. The
patrons themselves will occasionally drink too much, talk too loudly, get into fights, and get arrested for disorderly
conduct. But at the same time, there are crime suppressors. There are plenty of people to witness criminal activity,
to serve as mutual guardians for each other. There dozens of law enforcement officers and security guards within
shouting distance, and cameras covering most of the major streets. Nearby businesses are staying open later. Late
at night, the streets aren’t quite as dark or empty. Which factors win out? The attractors or the suppressors?

For this analysis, we will consider three geographies:

1. The immediate MGM block, including both sides of Main, State, and Union Streets and East Columbus Avenue,
but excluding the casino building itself, since there was nothing there but a construction site before September.

2. The larger Metro Center area surrounding MGM, southeast to the Basketball Hall of Fame and northwest to Union
Station.

76



3. The mixed business/residential neighborhoods that surround the Metro Center.

Figure 14: The three geographies analyzed in this section. Borders take in both sides of major streets.

The statistics we've been using so far in this report don’t work quite as well for smaller areas and smaller statistics,
so we'll compare 2018 to a straight average of the previous five years. To avoid wasting time with very low numbers,
I have eliminated (put into the “All Other” category) crimes that reported an average and 2018 figure of less than 2.

Crimes on the MGM block, September-December

Crime 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Avg. 2018 ‘
Sexual Assault ) 2 o o 0.8 2
Robbery 2 2 1 3 ) 1.6 0
Simple Assault 5 12 6 10 2 7.0 7
Threats 9 7 5 5 5 6.2 4
Burglary 1 2 1 5 2 2.2 )
Theft from Vehicle 7 7 4 5 1 4.8 8
Other Theft 13 13 9 2 2 7.8 1
Auto Theft 0 3 1 0 0 0.8 3
Vandalism 4 4 6 5 3 4.4 4
Drugs 0 1 3 2 1 1.4 1

~
~N



Crime 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Avg. 2018 ‘

Disorderly 3 3 1 3 2 2.4 6
Trespassing 0 1 0 1 0 0.4 2
All Other 30 20 19 26 19 22.8 27
Total 76 75 58 67 37 62.6 65

A mix. Total crime remained almost unchanged on the block. There hasn’t been a robbery or burglary since MGM
opened, but all the extra cars in the area have clearly proven too tempting a target to car burglars and auto thieves
(not that the numbers are very high). Some disorderly patrons have spilled onto the street. The two sexual assaults
are the most disturbing, although one seems to have been committed by someone who knew the victim at an area
restaurant.

Crimes in the Metro Center, September-December

Crime 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Avg. 2018 ‘
Sexual Assault 2 2 2 o 3 1.8 4
Kidnapping ) 2 0 2 3 1.4 2
Robbery 25 18 17 15 16 18.2 21
Aggravated Assault 29 22 28 22 18 23.8 22
Simple Assault 53 67 68 75 62 65.0 63
Threats 28 32 30 33 33 31.2 29
Burglary 30 27 12 14 16 19.8 13
Theft from Persons 7 6 2 3 1 3.8 4
Shoplifting 3 13 7 13 9 9.0 10
Theft from Building 21 14 5 16 20 15.2 34
Theft from Machine ) ) o 3 1 0.8 4
Theft from Vehicle 36 36 22 38 26 31.6 31
Theft of MV Parts 0 ) 4 4 5 2.6 3
Other Theft 85 105 65 28 17 60.0 16
Auto Theft 12 14 11 9 11 11.4 5
Forgery 5 5 3 3 7 4.6 4
Fraud 7 9 3 11 6 7.2 8
Credit Card Fraud 0 4 2 4 3 2.6 5
Identity Theft 2 4 9 2 1 3.6 3
Employee Theft 0 0 1 2 0 0.6 3
Stolen Property 8 5 o 2 3 3.6 6
Vandalism 42 A 59 36 23 40.8 51
Drugs 23 28 23 22 13 21.8 14
Prostitution 4 10 6 3 15 7.6 o
Weapons 10 12 8 9 5 8.8 4
Disorderly 18 12 16 19 15 16.0 25
Drunk Driving 1 4 2 2 1 2.0 2
Family Offenses 0 0 o 4 6 2.0 7
Trespassing 3 9 12 6 11 8.2 8
All Other 94 70 87 105 85 88.2 123
Total 548 574 504 506 435 513.4 524




We see basically the same story. An extra 10—15,000 people a day has caused crime to barely budge. Burglary is
notably down for area businesses, but thefts from their buildings during the daytime is up; perhaps thieves are
looking for unattended purses and wallets in food courts, meeting rooms, and open offices. (L.A. Fitness, a
laundromat, and Union Station have all been hit multiple times.) The vehicle crime increases seen in the MGM block
don't seem to have spread to the surrounding area. Vice, drugs, liquor, and prostitution are absent or keeping a low
profile.

Crimes in the surrounding neighborhoods, September-December

Crime 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Avg. 2018 ‘
Murder 2 1 1 2 0 1.2 2
Sexual Assault 21 17 14 3 13 13.6 13
Kidnapping 3 5 4 3 6 4.2 7
Robbery 60 48 56 59 47 54.0 42
Aggravated Assault 82 94 73 77 78 80.8 89
Simple Assault 286 284 278 284 236 273.6 260
Threats 148 135 136 169 151 147.8 102
Arson 1 1 3 7 o] 2.4 2
Burglary 146 137 102 108 95 117.6 62
Theft from Persons 4 4 5 1 2 3.2 5
Shoplifting ) 1 5 8 9 4.6 8
Theft from Building 76 27 24 52 50 45.8 57
Theft from Machine ) ) o 2 6 1.6 3
Theft from Vehicle 97 74 59 49 52 66.2 61
Theft of MV Parts 1 1 22 25 24 14.6 18
Other Theft 261 283 190 54 62 170.0 43
Auto Theft 53 54 54 51 61 54.6 28
Forgery 4 6 9 6 4 5.8 7
Fraud 8 16 13 17 16 14.0 8
Credit Card Fraud 1 1 10 12 10 6.8 15
Identity Theft 40 25 37 12 24 27.6 15
Extortion 0 0 0 1 0 0.2 3
Stolen Property 8 14 8 15 7 10.4 9
Vandalism 149 170 148 144 195 161.2 151
Drugs 52 62 81 81 86 72.4 75
Pornography 0 2 1 2 1 1.2 5
Prostitution 5 7 1 1 0 2.8 2
Weapons 35 40 39 34 32 36.0 54
Disorderly 62 23 23 23 34 33.0 16
Drunk Driving 5 5 1 4 2 3.4 4
Liquor Laws 4 3 3 4 6 4.0 2
Trespassing 31 14 23 32 46 29.2 42
All Other 285 246 260 411 366 313.6 360
Total 1930 1800 1683 1753 1721 1777-4 1570

79



Crime is down in the surrounding mixed residential/business neighborhoods—the lowest level in at least g years.
Robberies, burglaries, auto thefts, and miscellaneous thefts are way down, although some domestic crimes have
increased. Thefts from vehicles have increased elsewhere, but not here. Thefts from buildings are high, including
seven at a homeless shelter. There are a couple of weird patterns like the bumps in extortion and pornography.
Overall, the statistics suggest that the influence of the casino is largely contained to its immediate area.

This data represents only four months’ worth of activity, and it's possible for patterns to change in either direction.
We will continue to monitor these and other geographies at regular intervals.

80



Conclusion and future plans

This report being an initial four-month scan, there are several datasets yet unavailable that will allow us to expand
this analysis in future reports. As time passes, we will be able to incorporate the following:

e An expansive analysis of trends by working with the agencies to look at the full reports, including
narratives.

e An analysis of changes in the MGM Springfield area compared to control areas and the rest of the state.
This will become possible when a full stet of statewide NIBRS data is available, probably in early 2020.

e A comparative analysis of traffic collisions in the Springfield area versus control areas. This probably will
not be possible until a public statewide crash dataset is available, likely in 2021.

e Comparison of MGM Springfield with other casinos, normalized by the number of annual visitors each
facility receives. We are currently the process of collecting data from comparison casinos nationwide.

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission and author of this report have both received a number of questions from
partners and stakeholders concerning the possible growth of human trafficking, particularly sex trafficking, in the
area. Police statistics are a poor measure of “hidden” crimes like human trafficking, and thus we must look to more
creative ways to blend information and intelligence from a variety of sources. To this end, the MGC will be
commissioning a meeting of experts to discuss the issue, and to hopefully create an analytical process that will allow
us to report better on this potential phenomenon in future reports.

81



Appendix: Abbreviations and definitions

Acronyms and abbreviations

CAD

IBR

MGC

FBI

IACA

MACA

NIBRS

ODBC

PPC

PVTA

RMS

Computer-aided Dispatch
(system)

Incident-based reporting

Massachusetts Gaming
Commission

Federal Bureau of Investigation

International Association of
Crime Analysts

Massachusetts Association of
Crime Analysts

National Incident-based
Reporting System

Open Database Connectivity

Plainridge Park Casino

Pioneer Valley Transit Authority

Records Management System

A police database that holds information about
police dispatches to calls for service, including
incidents discovered by police officers. Some but
not all of the incidents reported in CAD are crimes
and have longer records in the RMS.

See NIBRS.

The commonwealth agency charged with

overseeing and regulating gaming in Massachusetts

National investigative agency, part of the U.S.
Department of Justice, in charge of collecting
national crime statistics.

A global nonprofit professional association that
provides training, literature, and networking to
individuals who analyze crime data.

A nonprofit professional association that provides
training, literature, and networking to individuals
who analyze crime data in New England.

FBI program for data collection that supersedes
UCR. Collects more specific data about a wider
variety of crimes. With only a few exceptions, all
Massachusetts agencies report to NIBRS and all
Massachusetts RMS vendors have implemented
NIBRS coding standards.

A technology developed by Microsoft that allows
any application that uses a database to connect to
any database source. The primary mechanism by
which we can extract data from police CAD and
RMS databases.

Massachusetts's first casino, a slot machine-only
parlor in Plainville, opened in June 2015.

The organization that operates bus service and
other public transportation in western
Massachusetts.

A police data system that stores information about
crimes and offenders. See also CAD.

82



SEIGMA Social and Economic Impacts of A multi-year research project hosted by the
Gaming in Massachusetts University of Massachusetts Amherst School of
Public and Health Sciences. The SEIGMA project
has a much broader mandate for its study than just

crime.
UCR Uniform Crime Reporting National program for the reporting of crime
(program) statistics to the FBI. Captures only summary data
about a limited number of crime types. Contrast
with NIBRS.

Crime definitions

The following are definitions of the crime categories used in this report. These are mostly drawn without
modification from the FBI's definitions for NIBRS crime categories. In almost all cases, attempts to commit these
crimes are counted equally with completed offenses. These crimes must, of course, be reported to the police to be
included in this report.

Aggravated Assault: An attack by one person upon another for the purpose of inflicting severe bodily injury.
Aggravated assault is either accompanied by the use of a deadly weapon (e.g., gun, knife, club) or some mechanism
that would result in serious harm (e.g., pushing someone down a staircase), or by serious injury even with a weapon
thatisn’t normally “deadly” (e.g., punching someone and breaking his jaw). If the incident involved neither a deadly
weapon nor serious injury, it's coded as a simple assault instead.

Arson: Intentional burning of a structure, vehicle, or personal property.

Auto theft: Thefts of vehicles capable of operating under their own power, including automobiles, trucks, buses,
motorcycles, and snowmobiles.

Bad checks: The issuance of checks on accounts with insufficient funds. This type of crime is typically only reported
by police when an arrest is made or an individual is charged.

Burglary: Unlawful entry of a structure, including residences, commercial buildings, and government buildings. The
entry does not have to occur by force (e.g., a “break-in”). The usual motive for burglary is to steal something inside,

but this isn't a necessary part of the definition.

Counterfeiting/forgery: Use or possession of an altered, copied, or imitated negotiable or non-negotiable
instrument, including U.S. currency, checks, and money orders.

Credit card fraud: Use of a stolen credit card or credit card data to obtain goods or services.

Disorderly: Disorderly conduct that rises to the level of a criminal charge.

Drug offenses: Manufacturing, sale, trafficking, transporting, or possession of controlled substances. Typically,
“incidents” of such crime are arrests, as the only way such incidents are reported is when they are discovered by the
police.

Drunk driving: Operation of a motor vehicle while intoxicated; usually while above a state-designated legal blood

alcohol level. As with many of the drug and alcohol categories, such incidents are only reported when discovered
by the police, usually resulting in an arrest.

83



Drunkenness: Naturally, not all incidents of intoxication are a police matter. Police incidents that fall into this
category are usually incidents of either public intoxication or individuals so dangerously intoxicated that they are
placed into protective custody until sober.

Employee theft: Also, “embezzlement.” Theft of an employer’s property by an employee.
Extortion: Theft or attempted theft of money, goods, or services through non-violent coercion.

Family offenses: Unlawful, nonviolent acts by a family member that threaten the physical, mental, or economic
well-being of another family member and are not classified under any other category. This category is only reported
when someone is charged, and it almost always involves violations of restraining orders or child neglect.

Forgery: Forgery of personal checks, business checks, U.S. currency, or similar negotiable and nonnegotiable
documents.

Fraud. Theft of property by lying in such a way that convinces a victim to surrender money or goods. It is theft
through some kind of scheme, “con game,” or ruse.

Gambling offenses: Crimes related to illegal gambling, promoting gambling, operating gambling machines,
bookmaking, and sports tampering.

Identity theft: Representation of oneself as another (actual) person or use of another person’s identifying
information to obtain goods or services, housing, medical care, or status.

Kidnapping: The abduction of one person by another, whether through force or guile. Most incidents coded as such
as “custodial” kidnappings involving a parent taking a child in violation of a custodial agreement.

Liquor law violations: lllegal manufacturing, sale, possession, or consumption of intoxicating drinks, often because
the offender is below the legal age.

Murder: the killing of one person by another, including non-negligent homicides.

Other thefts: A general category that includes thefts of services (e.g., gas drive-offs), thefts from persons (e.g.,
pocket-picking), thefts from outdoor public areas. Essentially, any non-burglary, non-robbery theft that is not
covered in one of the “theft” or “shoplifting” categories (below) is categorized here.

Pornography: Possession, sale, or manufacturing of illegal pornography. Since pornography is legal in
Massachusetts, such incidents generally involve minors, either as the subjects or recipients of the pornography.

Property crime: An aggregate category that sums the totals of arson, burglary, thefts from persons, purse
snatching, shoplifting, thefts from buildings, thefts from machines, thefts from vehicles, thefts of vehicle parts,
other theft, auto theft, forgery, fraud, credit card fraud, identity theft, employee theft, extortion, stolen property,
and vandalism.

Prostitution: Promotion or participation of sexual activities for profit. As with drug offenses, most “incidents” of
prostitution are arrests, as the crime is rarely reported except when discovered by the police.

Purse snatching: A theft in which an offender grabs a purse off the arm of the victim. If any significant force,
violence, or threats are employed, this crime becomes a robbery.

Robbery: Taking or attempting to take anything of value from another person by force or violence or threat of force
or violence. "Muggings” and “hold-ups” are examples of robberies. A robbery requires a direct confrontation
between the offender and victim; houses and buildings cannot be “robbed.”

84



Sexual assault: Any sexual act directed against another person (of either sex), either by force or otherwise against
the person’s will, or non-forcibly but when the victim is incapable of giving consent because of temporary or
permanent mental or physical incapacity. This category combines rapes, indecent assaults, molestation, and sexual
penetration with an object.

Shoplifting: Thefts of items offered for sale at retail establishments.

Simple assault: An assault that does not involve a dangerous weapon and does not result in significant injury.
Statutory rape: Consensual sexual activity with an individual who is unable to give legal consent because of age.
Stolen property offenses: Possession or sale of property previously stolen including motor vehicles and personal
property. Often, the person possessing the property is the one who stole it in the first place, but this category is
used when the actual thief cannot be determined.

Thefts from buildings: Thefts of items from commercial or government buildings open to the public, where such
entry does not constitute burglary. This often takes the form of thefts of employees’ property at businesses open
to the public.

Thefts from machines: Thefts from coin-operated machines, either for the coins or for the products inside.
Thefts from persons: Thefts of personal property from the direct control of the owner. These often take the form
of pocket-pickings or thefts of or from diners’ purses at restaurants. If any force, violence, or threats are employed,
this crime becomes a robbery.

Thefts from vehicles: Thefts of items from motor vehicles. The category includes breaking into vehicles (e.g.,
smashing a window), unlocked entry, and thefts of items from a vehicle’s exterior, such as pickup truck beds. Note

that thefts of vehicle parts are in a separate category.

Thefts of vehicle parts: Theft of parts or accessories from motor vehicles, including wheels, license plates, and
engine parts.

Threats: Threats to commit physical violence by one person against another. If any weapon is actually displayed or
employed, or if an assault is actually attempted, the crime is categorized as a simple or aggravated assault instead.

Trespassing: lllegal entry to a non-public part of a residence or business. Such entry is rarely to the interior of the
property, or it would be coded as burglary instead. Most reportable incidents of trespassing are either after notice
(e.g., a repeat shoplifter who is ordered not to return to a store) or at posted locations (e.g., construction sites,
abandoned buildings).

Vandalism: Destruction or defacement of public property, buildings, vehicles, or personal property.

Violent crime: An aggregate category that sums totals for murder, sexual assault, kidnapping, robbery, aggravated
assault, simple assault, and threats.

Weapon offenses: Possession, sale, or manufacturing of illegal weapons. This is often an additional offense

discovered by police during arrests for other crimes.

Call for service definitions

85



Calls for service include both criminal and noncriminal police incidents and activities. In the case of criminal
activities, such incidents receive a longer, more detailed report in the police records management system, and it so
it makes more sense to analyze them using the crime categories above than in their original call-for-service form.
Thus, the only incident types we have selected for analysis in this report are noncriminal. Definitions of those types
appear below. Because the police officer does not usually write a full report for calls for service, the dataset available
for analysis is more limited.

Administrative: A wide variety of call types that have to do with the administration of a police department, such as
delivery of documents to businesses or other government facilities, attendance at meetings, vehicle maintenance,
or even meal breaks. Agencies use their call-for-service systems to document such activities so that, later, they can
determine what a particular officer or unit was doing at a particular time, although the incidents are not truly “calls
for service.” Practices differ significantly between police agencies as to what is reported under this category, and it
is generally not useful for analysis.

Alarm: A burglar, panic, or medical alarm that required a response but (probably) turned out to be false or would
have a different final code.

Animal complaint: Calls involving sick, dangerous, or wild animals, animals in danger (e.g., leftin a hot or cold car),
or loose or noisy pets.

Assist other agency: A call type that involves rendering aid to a neighboring police or other government agency
for any number of purposes, including serious crimes, fire and medical issues, and traffic issues.

Crime enforcement: Any number of pro-active police activities meant to deter crime, generally taking the form of
a“directed patrol” to a particular location during a peak time for criminal activity (based either on citizen complaints
or internal analysis). Though not a technical “call for service,” such incidents are recorded in the CAD database to
document the officer’s activity.

Disabled vehicle: A call for service for a vehicle suffering physical or mechanical trouble, usually broken down in an
active roadway.

Disturbance: Any of a variety of types of disorderly conduct, disputes, fights, and excessive noise.

Domestic dispute: A dispute between family members, spouses, or intimate partners that has not risen to the level
of physical violence.

General service: Minor calls for service that involve rendering aid to residents and visitors for a variety of issues
such as giving directions, installing car seats, dealing with lockouts, and providing physical aid.

Gunshots: Reports of gunshots fired, whether phoned in by a resident or received from automatic detection
services.

Hunting: Reports of hunters hunting off-season, in protected areas, with illegal gear, or in an unsafe manner.

Lost property: Calls for service involving lost personal property such as wallets and mobile phones. If there is any
indication of theft, these incidents are typically reported under the appropriate crime category.

Medical aid: All calls for medical aids except unattended deaths and overdoses. Police responses only are included
in the figures in this report.

Missing person: a runaway or other missing person.

Prisoner transport: documentation of a police agency transporting an arrested person from one facility to another.

86



Psychological issue: Calls for service involving individuals with mental health issues.

Suspicious activity: Any suspicious person, vehicle, or other activity, whether identified by an officer or citizen.
Traffic collision: A collision involving at least one motor vehicle.

Traffic complaint: Complaint about reckless driving, illegal or unsafe parking, or other traffic issues.
Trespassing: Trespassing on private or public property.

Vehicle stop: An officer pulls over a vehicle for a moving or equipment violation.

Warrant service: a call type that documents the service, or attempted service, of an arrest warrant or search
warrant. The category is entirely police-directed.

Youth disorder: Disorderly incidents involving youths congregating, skateboarding, making noise, and so forth.

Offense types by associated crime category

Offense Category Offense Category
Aggravated Assault Violent Crime Liquor Law Violations Drug/Alcohol Crime
All Other Other Crime Murder Violent Crime
Arson Property Crime Other Thefts Property Crime
Auto Theft Property Crime Peeping Tom Other Crime
Bad Checks Property Crime Pornography Societal Crime
Burglary Property Crime Prostitution Societal Crime
Credit Card Fraud Property Crime Robbery Violent Crime
Disorderly Societal Crime Runaway Other Crime
Drug Equipment | Drug/Alcohol Crime Sexual Assault Violent Crime
Offense Shoplifting Property Crime
Drug Offense Drug/Alcohol Crime Simple Assault Violent Crime
Drunk Driving Drug/Alcohol Crime Statutory Rape Other Crime
Drunkenness Drug/Alcohol Crime Stolen Property Offense | Property Crime
Employee Theft Property Crime Thefts from Buildings Property Crime
Extortion Property Crime Thefts from Vehicles Property Crime
Family Offenses Other Crime Thefts of Vehicle Parts Property Crime
Forgery Property Crime Threats Violent Crime
Fraud/Con Games Property Crime Trespassing Other Crime
Gambling Societal Crime Vandalism Property Crime
Identity Theft Property Crime Weapon Offenses Societal Crime
Kidnapping Violent Crime

87



	Cover Page 5-23-19
	5-23-19 - Commission Meeting Agenda2 - FINAL
	3a) memo re MCCTI budget amendment FINAL
	3b) Q1 2019 MGC report (rev 5.22.19)
	4a) MEMO to Commissioners(MGM Underage)
	4b1) MGMS Registration Exemptions 5.22.2019
	4b2) MGMS Registration Exemption Request
	4c1) MGMS Amendment to Gaming Beverage License 5.16.2019
	4c2) Amended Gaming Beverage License  Application (signed)
	5a1) MGM4MonthAnalysisForMeeting
	Assessing the Impact of Gambling on Public Safety in Massachusetts
	Summary
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Methodology
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Signs of a casino relationship
	Major findings
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Other trends/notes
	Upcoming reports and events
	Thank You!

	5a2) MGM4MonthEvaluation

